Ninety-Eighth GENERAL ASSEMBLY 2013



RULES

of the

Illinois House of Representatives

Compiled by the Office of the Clerk

School Series Eastern Illinois University Blue and Gray

STATE OF ILLINOIS

RULES OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

OF THE NINETY-EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Rule	Page				
ARTICLE I					
	ORGANIZATION				
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Election of the Speaker1Election of the Minority Leader1Majority and Minority Leadership2The Speaker2Powers and Duties of the Minority Leader3Clerk of the House4Assistant Clerk of the House5				
8	Doorkeeper				
	ARTICLE II COMMITTEES				
10	Committees				
11	Standing Committees				
12	Members and Officers of Standing Committees9				
13 14 15	Special Committees				
16	Referrals of Resolutions and Reorganization Orders				
17	Sponsorship by the Rules Committee				
18	Referrals to Committees				
19 20 21 22 23 24	Re-Referrals to the Rules Committee15Reporting by Committees16Notice16Committee Procedure17Witnesses, Oaths and Subpoenae19Committee Reports19				

25	Suspension of Posting Requirements	
26	Rights of the Public	
27	Smoking	21
	ARTICLE III	
	CONDUCT OF BUSINESS	
28	Sessions of the House	21
29	Hour of Meeting	
30	Access to the House Floor	
31	Standing Order of Business	
32	Quorum	
33	Approval of the Journal	
34	Executive Sessions	
35	Length of Adjournment	
36	Transcript of the House	24
	ARTICLE IV	
	BILLS AND AMENDMENTS	
37	Bills	24
37.5	Amendments to Taxpayer Accountability and Budget Stabilization Act	
37.6	Amendments to State Pension Funds Continuing Appropriation Act	
38	Reading of Bills	
39	Reproduction and Distribution	
40	Amendments	26
41	Note Requests; Quick Takes	
42	Consent Calendar	
43	Changing Order of Business	
44	Special Orders; Rules Committee	31
	ARTICLE V	
	RESOLUTIONS AND CERTIFICATES	
	OF RECOGNITION	
45	Resolutions	32
46	State Constitutional Amendments	
47	Federal Constitutional Amendments and Constitutional Conventions	33
48	Certificates of Recognition	33
	ARTICLE VI	
	PARLIAMENTARY PRACTICE	
49	Voting	33
50	Announcing a Record Vote	
51	Decorum	
	::	

52	Debate	34
53	Written Statements	36
54	Motions	37
55	Precedence of Motions	37
56	Verification	38
57	Appealing a Ruling	38
58	Discharge of Committee	39
59	Previous Question	
60	Tabling	
61	Motion to Take From Table	40
62	Motion to Postpone Consideration	40
63	Motion on Different Subject	41
64	Division of Question	41
65	Reconsideration	41
66	Motion to Adjourn	41
67	Adoption and Amendment to or Suspension of Rules	42
68	Motion to Commit or Recommit	42
69	Effective Date	43
70	Home Rule	43
71	(Reserved)	43
	ARTICLE VIII	
	JOINT ACTION	
72	Concurring in or Receding from Amendments	43
73	Conference Committees	
74	Conference Committee Reports	
75	House Consideration of Joint Action	
76	Action on Conference Committee Reports	
	1	
	ARTICLE IX	
	VETOES	
77	Recording of Vetoes	46
78	Amendatory Vetoes	
79	Motions to Consider Vetoes.	
80	Consideration of Motions	
81	Vetoed Bills Considered in Entirety	
	J	
82	Disposition of Vetoes	48

ARTICLE X

ELECTION CONTESTS AND QUALIFICATIONS CHALLENGES

83	Election Contests and Qualifications Challenges	48
84	Initiating Election Contests	
85	Initiating Qualifications Challenges	50
86	Contests and Challenges; Due Process	50
87	Committee Proceedings and Powers in Contests and Challenges	51
88	Adoption of Reports in Contests and Challenges	51
	ARTICLE XI	
	DISCIPLINE AND PROTEST	
89	Disorderly Behavior	52
90	Protest	53
	ARTICLE XII	
	DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS	
91	Special Investigating Committee	53
92	Investigation	
93	Report of the Special Investigating Committee	
94	Select Committee on Discipline	
95	Hearings on Disciplinary Charges	
96	Report of the Select Committee on Discipline	
97	House Action on the Report of the Select Committee on Discipline	56
	ARTICLE XIII	
	FORCE AND EFFECT	
98	Applicability	56
99	Parliamentary Authority	56
100	Certification by Speaker	57
101	Effective Date	57
	ARTICLE XIV	
	DEFINITIONS	
102	Definitions	57

HOUSE RULES 98th GENERAL ASSEMBLY

ARTICLE I ORGANIZATION

(House Rule 1)

- 1. Election of the Speaker.
- (a) At the first meeting of the House of each General Assembly, the Secretary of State shall convene the House at 12:00 noon, designate a Temporary Clerk of the House, and preside during the nomination and election of the Speaker. As the first item of business each day before the election of the Speaker, the Secretary of State shall order the Temporary Clerk to call the roll of the members to establish the presence of a quorum as required by the Constitution. If a majority of those elected are not present, the House shall stand adjourned until the next calendar day, excepting weekends, at the hour prescribed in Rule 29. If a quorum of members elected is present, the Secretary of State shall then call for nominations of members for the Office of Speaker. All nominations require a second. When the nominations are completed, the Secretary of State shall direct the Temporary Clerk to call the roll of the members to elect the Speaker.
- (b) The election of the Speaker requires the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected. Debate is not in order following nominations and preceding or during the vote.
- (c) No legislative measure may be considered and no committees may be appointed or meet before the election of the Speaker.
- (d) When a vacancy in the Office of Speaker occurs, the foregoing procedure shall be employed to elect a new Speaker; when the Secretary of State is of a political party other than that of the majority caucus, however, the Majority Leader shall preside during the nomination and election of the successor Speaker. No legislative measures, other than for the nomination and election of a successor Speaker, may be considered by the House during a vacancy in the Office of Speaker.

(House Rule 2)

- 2. Election of the Minority Leader.
- (a) The House shall elect a Minority Leader in a manner consistent with the laws of Illinois. The Minority Leader is the leader of the numerically strongest political party other than the party to which the Speaker belongs.
 - (b) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 3)

- 3. Majority and Minority Leadership.
- (a) The Speaker and the Minority Leader shall appoint from within their respective caucuses the members of the Majority and Minority Leaderships as allowed by law.
- (b) Appointments are effective upon being filed with the Clerk and remain effective at the pleasure of the Speaker and Minority Leader, respectively, or until a vacancy occurs by reason of resignation or because a leader has ceased to be a Representative. Successor leaders shall be appointed in the same manner as their predecessors. Leaders have those powers delegated to them by the Speaker or Minority Leader, as the case may be.

(House Rule 4)

- 4. The Speaker.
- (a) The Speaker has those powers conferred upon him or her by the Constitution, the laws of Illinois, and any motions or resolutions adopted by the House or jointly by the House and Senate.
- (b) Except as otherwise provided by law, the Speaker is the chief administrative officer of the House and has those powers necessary to carry out those functions. The Speaker may delegate administrative duties as he or she deems appropriate.
 - (c) The duties of the Speaker include the following:
 - To preside at all sessions of the House, although the Speaker may call on any member to preside temporarily as Presiding Officer.
 - (2) To open the session at the time at which the House is to meet by taking the chair and calling the members to order. The Speaker may call on any member, or the Clerk in the case of perfunctory session, to open the session as Presiding Officer.
 - (3) To announce the business before the House in the order upon which it is to be acted. The Presiding Officer shall perform this duty during the period that he or she is presiding.
 - (4) To recognize those members entitled to the floor.
 - (5) To state and put to a vote all questions that are regularly moved or that necessarily arise in the course of the proceedings, and to announce the result of the vote.
 - (6) To preserve order and decorum.
 - (7) To decide all points of order, subject to appeal, and to speak on these points in preference to other members.
 - (8) To inform the House when necessary, or when any question is raised, on any point of order or practice pertinent to the pending business.
 - (9) To sign or authenticate all acts, proceedings, or orders of the House. All writs, warrants, and subpoena issued by order of the House, or any of its committees, shall be signed by the Speaker and attested by the Clerk.

- (10) To sign all bills passed by both chambers of the General Assembly to certify that the procedural requirements for passage have been met.
- (11) To have general supervision of the House Chamber, House galleries, House committee rooms and chapel, and adjoining and connecting hallways and passages, including the duty to protect their security and safety and the power to clear them when necessary. The House Chamber shall not be used without permission of the Speaker.
- (12) To have general supervision of the Clerk and his or her assistants, the Doorkeeper and his or her assistants, the majority caucus staff, the parliamentarians, and all employees of the House except the minority caucus staff.
- (13) To determine the number of majority caucus members and minority caucus members to be appointed to all committees, except as otherwise provided by these Rules.
- (14) To appoint all Chairpersons, Co-Chairpersons, and Vice-Chairpersons of committees (from either the majority or minority caucus), and to appoint all majority caucus members of committees.
- (15) To enforce all constitutional provisions, statutes, rules, and regulations applicable to the House.
- (16) To guide and direct the proceedings of the House subject to the control and will of the members.
- (17) To direct the Clerk to correct non-substantive errors in the Journal.
- (18) To assign meeting places and meeting times to committees and subcommittees.
- (19) To perform any other duties assigned to the Speaker by these House Rules or jointly by the House and Senate.
- (20) To decide, subject to the control and will of the members, all questions relating to the priority of business.
- (21) To issue, in cooperation with the Comptroller and after clearance with the United States Internal Revenue Service, written regulations covering administration of contingent expense allowances of members of the House.
- (22) To appoint one or more parliamentarians to serve at the pleasure of the Speaker.
- (d) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 5)

- 5. Powers and Duties of the Minority Leader.
- (a) The Minority Leader has those powers conferred upon him or her by the Constitution, the laws of Illinois, and any motions or resolutions adopted by the House or jointly by the House and Senate.
- (b) The Minority Leader shall appoint to all committees the members from the minority caucus and shall designate a Minority Spokesperson for each committee, except

that the Speaker may appoint a minority caucus member to be Chairperson or Co-Chairperson of a standing committee or a special committee.

(c) The Minority Leader has general supervision of the minority caucus staff.

(House Rule 6)

- 6. Clerk of the House.
- (a) The House shall elect a Clerk, who may adopt appropriate policies or procedures for the conduct of his or her office. The Speaker is the final arbiter of any dispute arising in connection with the operation of the Office of the Clerk.
 - (b) The duties of the Clerk include the following:
 - (1) To have custody of all bills, papers, and records of the House, which shall not be taken out of the Clerk's custody except in the regular course of business in the House.
 - (2) To endorse on every original bill and each copy its number, the names of sponsors, the date of introduction, and the several orders taken on it. When reproduced, the names of the sponsors shall appear on the front page of the bill in the same order they appeared when introduced.
 - (3) To cause each measure subject to such a requirement to be reproduced and placed on the desks of the members as soon as it is reproduced, as provided in Rule 39.
 - (4) To keep the Journal of the proceedings of the House and, under the direction of the Speaker, correct errors in the Journal.
 - (5) To keep the transcripts of the debates of the House and make them available to the public under reasonable conditions.
 - (6) To keep the necessary records for the House and its committees; and to prepare the House Calendar for each legislative day, except perfunctory session days.
 - (7) To examine all House Bills and Constitutional Amendment Resolutions following Second Reading and before final passage for the purpose of correcting any non-substantive errors, and to report the same back to the Speaker promptly; to supervise the enrolling and engrossing of bills and resolutions, subject to the direction of the Speaker; and to attest to the passage or adoption of legislative measures, and to note thereon the date of final House action. Any corrections made by the Clerk and approved by the Speaker shall be entered on the Journal.
 - (8) To transmit bills, other documents, and messages to the Senate and secure a receipt therefor, and to receive from the Senate bills, other documents, and messages and give receipt therefor.
 - (9) To file with the Secretary of State debate transcripts and House documents as required by law.
 - (10) To attend every session of the House; record the roll; and read all bills, resolutions, and other papers as directed by the Speaker. Bills shall be read by title only.

- (11) To supervise the Assistant Clerk, the Doorkeeper, pages, messengers, committee clerks, and other employees of his or her office.
- (12) To establish the format for all documents, forms, and committee records and audio recordings prepared by committee clerks.
- (13) Subject to approval by the Speaker, to establish standards of decorum and other standards regarding written statements filed under Rule 53.
- (14) To serve as the Speaker's authorized designee for purposes of the Freedom of Information Act. The Clerk shall provide copies of all requests for information under the Freedom of Information Act to the member subject to the request, as well as any responses, notifications, or public records included with responses and notifications.
- (15) To ensure each motion under consideration for a roll call vote is accurately displayed on the public viewing board. Accurate and appropriate display of items shall be determined by the standard practices set forth by the Speaker within the technological abilities and limitations of the system.
- (16) To perform other duties assigned by the Speaker.
- (c) The Clerk and those under the supervision of the Clerk, including the Assistant Clerk, committee clerks, and other employees, may accept a bill, amendment, conference committee report, amendatory veto acceptance motion, or resolution for filing only if (i) it is a document entered into the General Assembly's computer system, at the direction of or with the approval of a member, by the Legislative Reference Bureau, the House or the Senate Democratic staff, the House or the Senate Republican staff, or House or Senate Enrolling and Engrossing or, with respect to appropriation documents only, entered into the General Assembly's computer system by the Governor's Office of Management and Budget, (ii) it bears a bar coded document number of the drafting entity that is compatible with the computer system used by the House, and (iii) the bar coded document number does not duplicate one on another document that has already been filed in the House or the Senate.

(House Rule 7)

7. Assistant Clerk of the House. The House shall, in a manner consistent with the laws of Illinois, elect an Assistant Clerk, who shall perform those duties assigned by the Clerk.

(House Rule 8)

- 8. Doorkeeper. The House shall elect a Doorkeeper who shall perform those duties assigned by law, or as ordered by the Speaker, Presiding Officer, or Clerk. Those duties shall include the following:
 - (1) To attend the House during its sessions and execute the commands of the Speaker or Presiding Officer.
 - (2) To maintain order among spectators admitted into the House Chamber, galleries, and adjoining or connecting hallways and passages.
 - (3) To take proper measures to prevent interruption of the House.

- (4) To remove unruly persons from the House Chamber, galleries, and adjoining and connecting hallways and passages.
- (5) To ensure that only authorized persons have access to the House Chamber, galleries, and adjoining hallways and passages, subject to the direction of the Speaker.
- (6) To supervise any Assistant Doorkeepers.
- (7) To perform other duties assigned by the Speaker.

(House Rule 9)

- 9. Schedule.
- (a) The Speaker shall periodically establish a schedule of days on which the House shall convene in regular, perfunctory, and veto session, with that schedule subject to revision at the discretion of the Speaker.
- (b) The Speaker may schedule or reschedule deadlines at his or her discretion for any action on any category of legislative measure as the Speaker deems appropriate, including deadlines for the following legislative actions:
 - (1) Final day to request bills from the Legislative Reference Bureau.
 - (2) Final day for introduction of bills.
 - (3) Final day for standing committees of the House to report House bills, except House appropriation bills.
 - (4) Final day for standing committees of the House to report House appropriation bills.
 - (5) Final day for Third Reading and passage of House bills, except House appropriation bills.
 - (6) Final day for Third Reading and passage of House appropriation bills.
 - (7) Final day for standing committees of the House to report Senate appropriation bills.
 - (8) Final day for standing committees of the House to report Senate bills, except appropriation bills.
 - (9) Final day for special committees to report to the House.
 - (10) Final day for Third Reading and passage of Senate appropriation bills.
 - (11) Final day for Third Reading and passage of Senate bills, except appropriation bills.
 - (12) Final day for consideration of joint action motions and conference committee reports.
- (c) The Speaker may schedule or reschedule any necessary deadlines for legislative action during any special session of the House.
- (d) The foregoing deadlines, or any revisions to those deadlines, are effective upon being filed by the Speaker with the Clerk. The Clerk shall journalize those deadlines.
 - (e) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

ARTICLE II COMMITTEES

(House Rule 10)

- 10. Committees.
- (a) The committees of the House are: (i) the standing committees listed in Rule 11; (ii) the special committees created under Rule 13; (iii) any subcommittees created under these Rules; (iv) the Rules Committee created under Rule 15; (v) any committees created under Article X or Article XII; and (vi) any Committee of the Whole. Committees of the Whole shall consist of all Representatives.
- (b) Except as otherwise provided in this Rule and subject to Rules 12 and 13, all committees shall have a Chairperson and Minority Spokesperson, who may be of the same political party. A Minority Spokesperson may not be appointed until after a Chairperson has been appointed. Standing committees that have Co-Chairpersons from different political parties shall not have a Minority Spokesperson. Special committees that have Co-Chairpersons from different political parties shall not have a Minority Spokesperson. No member may be appointed to serve as a Chairperson, Minority Spokesperson, or Co-Chairperson of any committee unless the member is serving in at least his or her third term as a member of the General Assembly, including any terms in which the member was appointed to fill a vacancy in the office of Representative or Senator; provided that this requirement does not apply if the member received a stipend or additional amount during a previous General Assembly as an "officer", "committee chairman", or "committee minority spokesman" as provided in Section 1 of the General Assembly Compensation Act (25 ILCS 115/1) and in Rule 13(b). Each committee may have a Vice-Chairperson appointed by the Speaker. The number of majority caucus members and minority caucus members of all committees, except the Rules Committee created under Rule 15 and as otherwise provided by these Rules, shall be determined by the Speaker. The Speaker shall file a notice with the Clerk setting forth the number of majority caucus and minority caucus members of each committee, which shall be journalized. A member may be temporarily replaced on a committee due to illness or if the member is otherwise unavailable. All leaders are non-voting ex-officio members of each standing committee and each special committee, except that the leaders may also be appointed to standing committees or special committees as voting members. The Speaker may also appoint any member of the majority caucus, and the Minority Leader may appoint any member of the minority caucus, as a non-voting ex-officio member of any standing committee or special committee.
- (c) The Chairperson of a committee has the authority to call the committee to order, designate which bills and resolutions posted for hearing shall be taken up and in what order, order a record vote to be taken on each legislative measure called for a vote, preserve order and decorum during committee meetings, establish procedural rules (subject to approval by the Speaker) governing the presentation and consideration of legislative measures, and generally supervise the affairs of the committee. Any such procedural rules must be filed with the Clerk and copies provided to all members of the committee. The Vice-Chairperson of a committee or other member of the committee from

the majority caucus may preside over its meetings in the absence or at the direction of the Chairperson. In the case of standing or special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the "Chairperson" for purposes of this Rule is the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus.

- (d) A vacancy on a committee, or in the position of Chairperson, Co-Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, or Minority Spokesperson on a committee, exists when a member resigns from the position, ceases to be a Representative, or changes political party affiliation. Resignations and notices of a change in political party affiliation shall be made in writing to the Clerk, who shall promptly notify the Speaker and Minority Leader. Absent concurrence by a majority of those elected, except as otherwise provided in Rule 15 and except in connection with temporary replacements under Rule 10(b), no member who resigns from a committee shall be re-appointed to that committee for the remainder of the term. Replacement members shall be of the same political party as that of the member who resigns, and shall be appointed in the same manner as the original appointment, except that in the case of the resignation of a Chairperson or Co-Chairperson, the replacement member need not be from the same political party. In the case of vacancies on subcommittees, the parent committee shall fill the vacancy in the same manner as the original appointment.
- (e) The Chairperson of a committee has the authority to call meetings of that committee, subject to the approval of the Speaker. In the case of standing or special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus has the authority to call meetings of the special committee, subject to the approval of the Speaker. Except as otherwise provided by these Rules, committee meetings shall be convened in accordance with Rule 21.
 - (f) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 11)

11. Standing Committees. The Standing Committees of the House are as follows:

AGRICULTURE & CONSERVATION

APPROPRIATIONS-ELEMENTARY & SECONDARY EDUCATION

APPROPRIATIONS-GENERAL SERVICES

APPROPRIATIONS-HIGHER EDUCATION

APPROPRIATIONS-HUMAN SERVICES

APPROPRIATIONS-PUBLIC SAFETY

BUSINESS & OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES

CITIES & VILLAGES

CONSUMER PROTECTION

COUNTIES & TOWNSHIPS

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

ELEMENTARY & SECONDARY EDUCATION

ENERGY

ENVIRONMENT

EXECUTIVE

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS HEALTH CARE AVAILABILITY & ACCESSIBILITY HEALTH CARE LICENSES HIGHER EDUCATION **HUMAN SERVICES INSURANCE** INTERNATIONAL TRADE & COMMERCE **JUDICIARY** LABOR & COMMERCE MASS TRANSIT PERSONNEL & PENSIONS PUBLIC UTILITIES **REVENUE & FINANCE** SMALL BUSINESS EMPOWERMENT & WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

STATE GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION

TRANSPORTATION: REGULATION, ROADS & BRIDGES

TRANSPORTATION: VEHICLES & SAFETY

(House Rule 12)

12. Members and Officers of Standing Committees. The members of each standing committee shall be appointed for the term by the Speaker and the Minority Leader. The Speaker, at his or her discretion, shall appoint a Chairperson or Co-Chairpersons. The Speaker may appoint any member as a Chairperson or Co-Chairperson of a standing committee, subject to Rule 10(b). If the Chairperson or Co-Chairperson is a member of the majority or minority leadership or the Chairperson or Minority Spokesperson of any other standing committee or of a special committee, the member shall receive no additional stipend or compensation for serving as Chairperson or Co-Chairperson of the standing committee. For purposes of Section 1 of the General Assembly Compensation Act (25 ILCS 115/1), one Co-Chairperson of a standing committee shall be considered "Chairman" and the other shall be considered "Minority Spokesman" unless both Co-Chairpersons are members of the majority caucus. The Speaker shall appoint the remaining standing committee members of the majority caucus (one of whom the Speaker may designate as Vice-Chairperson), and the Minority Leader shall appoint the remaining standing committee members of the minority caucus (one of whom the Minority Leader may designate as Minority Spokesperson), except that if the standing committee has Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the standing committee shall not have a Minority Spokesperson. In that case, the Minority Leader shall appoint the minority caucus members to the standing committee, except the Co-Chairperson from the minority caucus, who shall be appointed by the Speaker. Appointments are effective upon the delivery of appropriate correspondence from the respective leader to the Clerk, regardless of whether the House is in session, and shall remain effective for the duration of the term, subject to Rule 10(d). The Clerk shall journalize the appointments. Committees may conduct business when a majority of the total number of committee members has been appointed.

(House Rule 13)

13. Special Committees.

(a) The following Special Committees are created:
ACCOUNTABILITY & ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW
ADOPTION REFORM
BUSINESS GROWTH & INCENTIVES
HEALTH & HEALTHCARE DISPARITIES
HOUSING
MUSEUMS, ARTS, & CULTURAL ENHANCEMENT
PUBLIC SAFETY: POLICE & FIRE
RESTORATIVE JUSTICE

TOLLWAY OVERSIGHT TOURISM & CONVENTIONS VETERANS' AFFAIRS

The Speaker may create additional special committees by filing a notice of the creation of the special committee with the Clerk. The notice creating an additional special committee shall specify the subject matter of the special committee and the number of members to be appointed. Any committee created by a House resolution shall be deemed a special committee, unless otherwise provided, for purposes of these Rules. Such a resolution must be approved by a majority of those elected and may include the number of majority and minority caucus members to be appointed.

(b) The Speaker shall determine the number of majority and minority caucus members to be appointed to special committees in accordance with Rule 10(b). The Speaker, at his or her discretion, shall appoint a Chairperson or Co-Chairpersons. The Speaker may appoint any member as a Chairperson or Co-Chairperson of a special committee, subject to Rule 10(b). If the Chairperson or Co-Chairperson is a member of the majority or minority leadership or the Chairperson or Minority Spokesperson of a standing committee, the member shall receive no additional stipend or compensation for serving as Chairperson or Co-Chairperson of the special committee. For purposes of Section 1 of the General Assembly Compensation Act (25 ILCS 115/1), (i) a special committee under these rules is considered a "select committee" and (ii) one Co-Chairperson of a special committee shall be considered "Chairman" and the other shall be considered "Minority Spokesman" unless both Co-Chairpersons are members of the majority caucus. The appointed members of special committees shall be designated by the Speaker and the Minority Leader in a like manner as provided in Rule 12 with respect to standing committees. If the special committee has Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the special committee shall not have a Minority Spokesperson. In that case, the Minority Leader shall appoint the minority caucus members to the special committee, except the Co-Chairperson from the minority caucus who shall be appointed

by the Speaker. The Speaker may establish a reporting date during the term for each special committee by filing a notice of the reporting date with the Clerk. Unless an earlier date is specified by the notice, special committees expire at the end of the term.

- (c) Special committees are empowered to conduct business when a majority of the total number of committee members has been appointed.
 - (d) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 14)

- 14. Subcommittees.
- (a) The Chairperson of a standing committee, a special committee, or a committee created under Article X may create a subcommittee by filing a notice with the Clerk. The number of majority caucus and minority caucus members to be appointed to a subcommittee shall be determined by the Committee Chairperson, and filed with the Clerk. The notice creating a subcommittee shall specify the subject matter of the subcommittee and the number of members to be appointed, and may specify a reporting date during the term. In the case of standing or special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the creation of subcommittees and the number of majority caucus and minority caucus members to be appointed to the subcommittee shall be determined by the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus. Members of subcommittees must be members of the parent committee, and shall be appointed in the manner determined by the committee Chairperson, or in the case of standing or special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, by the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus. Subcommittees shall not create subcommittees.

Unless an earlier date is specified by the notice, subcommittees expire at the end of the term.

(b) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 15)

- 15. Rules Committee.
- (a) The Rules Committee is created as a permanent committee. The Rules Committee shall consist of 5 members, 3 appointed by the Speaker and 2 appointed by the Minority Leader. The Speaker and the Minority Leader are each eligible to be appointed to the Rules Committee. The Rules Committee may conduct business when a majority of the total number of its members has been appointed.
- (b) The majority caucus members of the Rules Committee shall serve at the pleasure of the Speaker, and the minority caucus members shall serve at the pleasure of the Minority Leader. Appointments shall be by notice filed with the Clerk, and shall be effective for the balance of the term or until a replacement appointment is made, whichever first occurs. Appointments take effect upon filing with the Clerk, regardless of whether the House is in session. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Rules, any Representative who is replaced on the Rules Committee may be re-appointed to the Rules Committee without concurrence of the House.

- (c) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Rules, the Rules Committee may meet upon reasonable public notice that includes a statement of the subjects to be considered. All legislative measures pending before the Rules Committee are eligible for consideration at any of its meetings, and all of those legislative measures are deemed posted for hearing by the Rules Committee for all of its meetings.
- (d) Upon concurrence of a majority of those appointed, the Rules Committee may advance any legislative measure pending before it to the House, without referral to another committee; the Rules Committee, however, shall not so report (i) any committee amendment, or (ii) any bill that has never been favorably reported by or discharged from a standing committee or a special committee of the House or recommended for action by a joint committee of the House and Senate. A bill advanced to the House shall be placed on the Daily Calendar on the order on which it appeared before it was re-referred to the Rules Committee. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Rules, a floor amendment, joint action motion for final action, or conference committee report advanced to the House by the Rules Committee may be considered for adoption no sooner than one hour after the Clerk announces the report of the Rules Committee referring such a legislative measure to the House.
 - (e) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 16)

- 16. Referrals of Resolutions and Reorganization Orders.
- (a) All resolutions, except adjournment resolutions and resolutions considered under subsection (b) or (c) of this Rule, after being initially read by the Clerk, shall be ordered reproduced and distributed as provided in Rule 39 and automatically referred to the Rules Committee, which may thereafter refer any resolution before it to the House or to a standing committee or special committee. No resolution, except adjournment resolutions and resolutions considered under subsection (b) or (c) of this Rule, may be considered by the House unless (i) referred to the House by the Rules Committee under Rule 18, (ii) favorably reported by a standing committee or special committee, (iii) authorized under Article XII, or (iv) discharged from committee pursuant to Rule 18(g) or Rule 58. An adjournment resolution is subject to Rule 66.
- (b) Any member may file a congratulatory or death resolution for consideration by the House. The Principal Sponsor of each congratulatory or death resolution shall pay a reasonable fee, determined by the Clerk with the approval of the Speaker, to offset the actual cost of producing the congratulatory or death resolution. The fee may be paid from the office allowance provided by Section 4 of the General Assembly Compensation Act, or from any other funds available to the member. Upon agreement of the Speaker and the Minority Leader, congratulatory or death resolutions may be immediately considered and adopted by the House without referral to the Rules Committee. Those resolutions may be adopted as a group by a single motion. Congratulatory and death resolutions shall be entered on the Journal only by number, sponsorship, and subject. The provisions of this subsection requiring the Principal Sponsor to pay a reasonable fee may not be suspended.

- (c) Death resolutions in memory of former members of the General Assembly and former constitutional officers, upon introduction, may be immediately considered by the House without referral to the Rules Committee. Those resolutions shall be entered on the Journal in full.
- (d) Executive reorganization orders of the Governor issued under Article V, Sec. 11 of the Constitution, upon being read into the record by the Clerk, are automatically referred to the Rules Committee for its referral to a standing committee or a special committee, which may issue a recommendation to the House with respect to the Executive Order. The House may disapprove of an Executive Order only by resolution adopted by a majority of those elected; no such resolution is in order until a standing committee or a special committee has reported to the House on the executive reorganization, or until the Executive Order has been discharged under Rule 58.

(House Rule 17)

17. Sponsorship by the Rules Committee. The Rules Committee may consider any legislative measure referred to it under these Rules, by motion or resolution, or by order of the Presiding Officer upon initial reading. The Rules Committee may, with the concurrence of a majority of those appointed, sponsor motions or resolutions; notwithstanding any other provision of these Rules, any motion or resolution sponsored by the Rules Committee may be immediately considered by the House without referral to a committee. Any such motion or resolution shall be assigned standard debate status, subject to Rule 52.

(House Rule 18)

- 18. Referrals to Committees.
- (a) All House Bills and Senate Bills, after being initially read by the Clerk, are automatically referred to the Rules Committee. All bills must be reproduced and distributed as provided in Rule 39.
- (b) The Rules Committee may refer any such bill before it to a standing committee or a special committee. During even-numbered years, the Rules Committee shall refer to a standing committee or a special committee only appropriation bills implementing the budget and bills deemed by the Rules Committee, by the affirmative vote of a majority appointed, to be of an emergency nature or to be of substantial importance to the operation of government. This subsection (b) applies equally to House Bills and Senate Bills introduced into or received by the House.
- (b-5) Notwithstanding subsection (b), the Rules Committee may refer any legislative measure to a joint committee of the House and Senate created by joint resolution. That joint committee shall report back to the Rules Committee any recommendation for action made by that joint committee. The Rules committee may, at any time, however, refer the legislative measure to a standing or special committee of the House.
- (c) A standing committee or a special committee may refer a subject matter or a legislative measure pending in that committee to a subcommittee of that committee.

- (d) All legislative measures favorably reported by a standing committee or a special committee, or discharged from a standing committee or a special committee under Rule 58, shall be referred to the House and placed on the appropriate order of business, which shall appear on the daily calendar. All legislative measures, except bills or resolutions on the Consent Calendar, bills or resolutions assigned short debate status by a standing committee or special committee, and floor amendments, so referred are automatically assigned standard debate status, subject to Rule 52.
- (e) All committee amendments, floor amendments, joint action motions for final action, conference committee reports, and motions to table committee amendments, upon filing with the Clerk, are automatically referred to the Rules Committee. The Rules Committee may refer any committee amendment to the standing committee or the special committee to which the bill or resolution it amends has been referred for its review and consideration, provided the committee amendment is filed no later than 3:00 p.m. the business day before a meeting at which that bill or resolution may be considered. "Business day" does not include Saturday, Sunday, or State or federal holidays unless the House is in session or the Clerk's office is otherwise open to the public on that day. The Rules Committee may refer any floor amendment, joint action motion for final action, conference committee report, or motion to table a committee amendment to the House or to a standing committee or a special committee for its review and consideration (in those instances, and notwithstanding any other provision of these Rules, the standing committee or special committee may hold a hearing on and consider those legislative measures pursuant to a one-hour advance notice, and referrals to the House shall be subject to the notice requirements of Rule 15(d)). Any floor amendment, joint action motion for final action, conference committee report, or motion to table a committee amendment that is not referred to the House by, or discharged from, the Rules Committee is out of order, except that any floor amendment, joint action motion for final action, conference committee report, or motion to table a committee amendment favorably reported by, or discharged from, a standing committee or a special committee is deemed referred to the House by the Rules Committee for purposes of this Rule. All joint action motions for final action, conference committee reports and motions to table committee amendments so referred are automatically assigned standard debate status, subject to Rule 52. Floor amendments referred to the House under this Rule are automatically assigned amendment debate status.
- (f) The Rules Committee may at any time refer or re-refer a legislative measure from a committee to a Committee of the Whole or to any other committee. If a bill or resolution is re-referred from a standing or special committee to a Committee of the Whole or to any other committee pursuant to this Rule, any committee amendments pending in the standing or special committee shall be automatically re-referred with the bill or resolution.
- (g) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Rules, any bill pending before the Rules Committee shall be immediately discharged and referred to a standing committee, special committee, or order of the Daily Calendar, as provided in this Rule, if the Principal Sponsor of the bill files a motion that is signed by no less than three-fifths of the

members of both the majority and minority caucuses, provided each member signing the motion is a sponsor of the underlying bill subject to the motion and the motion specifies the appropriate standing committee, special committee, or order on the Daily Calendar to which the bill shall be referred. Such a motion shall be filed, in writing, with the Clerk. All other legislative measures may be discharged from the Rules Committee only by unanimous consent of the House. A bill or resolution discharged from the Rules Committee shall be referred as follows: (i) a bill or resolution that was not previously referred shall be referred to the standing committee or special committee designated on the motion, subject to the notice requirement of Rule 21; (ii) a bill or resolution re-referred to the Rules Committee from a standing committee or special committee shall be re-referred to that committee, subject to the notice requirement of Rule 21; and (iii) a bill or resolution re-referred to the Rules Committee from Second Reading or Third Reading shall be re-referred to the proper order of business on the Daily Calendar, provided the bill or resolution shall be carried on the Daily Calendar for at least one legislative day prior to consideration by the House. Legislative measures, other than bills or resolutions, that are discharged from the Rules Committee shall be referred as follows: (i) an amendment, joint action motion for final action, or conference committee report shall be referred to the committee that considered the underlying bill or resolution and (ii) any other legislative measure shall be referred to the proper order of business on the Daily Calendar, provided the legislative measure shall be carried on the Daily Calendar for at least one legislative day prior to consideration by the House. Rulings of the Presiding Officer related to this subsection (g) may not be appealed. This subsection may not be suspended.

(h) Except for those provisions that may not be suspended, this Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 19)

- 19. Re-Referrals to the Rules Committee.
- (a) All legislative measures that fail to meet the applicable deadline established under Rule 9 for reporting to the House by a standing committee or a special committee, for Third Reading and passage, or for consideration of joint action motions and conference committee reports are automatically re-referred to the Rules Committee unless: (i) the deadline has been suspended or revised by the Speaker, with re-referral to the Rules Committee to occur if the bill has not been reported to the House in accordance with a revised deadline; or (ii) the Rules Committee has issued a written exception to the Clerk with respect to a particular bill before the reporting deadline, with re-referral to occur, if at all, in accordance with the written exception. When a bill is re-referred to the Rules Committee after failure to meet the Third Reading deadline, any floor amendment to the bill remaining in a standing or special committee shall also be re-referred to the Rules Committee.
- (b) All legislative measures pending before the House or any of its committees are automatically re-referred to the Rules Committee on the 31st consecutive day that the House has not convened for session unless: (i) any deadline applicable to the bill or

resolution that has been designated by the Speaker under Rule 9 exceeds 31 days, with re-referral to occur, if at all, in accordance with that deadline; (ii) this Rule is suspended under Rule 67; or (iii) the Rules Committee, by the affirmative vote of a majority appointed, issues a written exception to the Clerk before that 31st day.

(House Rule 20)

20. Reporting by Committees. Committees shall report to the House, and subcommittees shall report to their parent committees.

(House Rule 21)

- 21. Notice.
- (a) Except as otherwise provided in these Rules or unless this Rule is suspended under Rule 67 or unless the Rules Committee by majority vote waives the notice requirement for a subject matter hearing of any committee, standing committees, special committees, committees created under Article X of these Rules, and subcommittees of those committees shall not consider or conduct a hearing with respect to a subject matter or a legislative measure absent notice first being given as follows:
 - (1) The Chairperson of the committee, or the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus of a standing or special committee, shall, no later than 6 days before any proposed hearing, post a notice on the House bulletin board identifying each subject matter and each legislative measure, other than a committee amendment upon initial consideration under Rule 40, that may be considered during that hearing. The notice shall contain the day, hour, and place of the hearing. Legislative measures and subject matters posted for hearing as provided in this item (1) may also be considered at any committee hearing re-convened following a recess of the committee for which notice was posted, but only if the House has met or was scheduled to meet in regular, veto, or special session on each calendar day from the time of the original committee hearing to the re-convened committee hearing.
 - (2) Meetings of the Rules Committee may be called under Rule 15; meetings of the standing committees and special committees to consider floor amendments, joint action motions for final action, conference committee reports, and motions to table committee amendments may be called under Rule 18.
 - (3) The Chairperson, or Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus of a standing or special committee, shall, in advance of a committee hearing, notify all Principal Sponsors of legislative measures posted for that hearing of the date, time, and place of hearing. When practical, the Clerk shall include a notice of all scheduled hearings, together with all posted bills and resolutions, in the Daily Calendar of the House. Regardless of whether a particular legislative measure or subject matter has been posted for hearing, it is in order for a committee during any of its meetings to refer a subject

matter or legislative measure pending before it to a subcommittee of that committee.

- (b) Except as authorized under Rule 28, no committee, other than the Rules Committee, may meet during any session of the House, and no commission created by Illinois law that has legislative membership may meet during any session of the House.
- (c) Regardless of whether notice has been previously given, it is always in order for a committee to table any legislative measure pending before it when the Principal Sponsor so requests, subject to Rule 60.
- (d) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected, subject to Rule 25.

(House Rule 22)

- 22. Committee Procedure.
- (a) A committee may consider any legislative measure referred to it, except as provided in subsection (b), and may make with respect to that legislative measure one of the following reports to the House or to the parent committee, as appropriate:
 - (1) that the bill "do pass";
 - (2) that the bill "do not pass";
 - (3) that the bill "do pass as amended";
 - (4) that the bill "do not pass as amended";
 - (5) that the resolution "be adopted";
 - (6) that the resolution "be not adopted";
 - (7) that the resolution "be adopted as amended";
 - (8) that the resolution "be not adopted as amended";
 - (9) that the floor amendment, joint action motion, conference committee report, or motion to table a committee amendment referred by the Rules Committee "be adopted";
 - (10) that the floor amendment, joint action motion, conference committee report, or motion to table a committee amendment referred by the Rules Committee "be not adopted":
 - (11) that the Executive Order "be disapproved";
 - (12) that the Executive Order "be not disapproved";
 - (13) "without recommendation"; or
 - (14) "tabled".

Any of the foregoing reports may be made only upon the concurrence of a majority of those appointed. All legislative measures reported "do pass", "do pass as amended", "be adopted", or "be adopted as amended" are favorably reported to the House. Except as otherwise provided by these Rules, any legislative measure referred or re-referred to a committee and not reported under this Rule shall remain in that committee.

- (b) No bill that provides for an appropriation of money from the State Treasury may be considered for passage by the House unless it has first been favorably reported by an Appropriations Committee or:
 - (1) the bill was discharged from an Appropriations Committee under Rule 58;

- (2) the bill was exempted from this requirement by a majority of those appointed to the Rules Committee; or
- (3) this Rule was suspended under Rule 67.
- (c) The Clerk shall keep a record in which there shall be entered:
 - (1) The time and place of each meeting of the committee.
 - (2) The attendance of committee members at each meeting.
 - (3) The votes cast by the committee members on all legislative measures acted on by the committee.
 - (4) The "Record of Committee Witness" forms executed by each person appearing or registering in each committee meeting, which shall include identification of the witness, the person, group, or firm represented by appearance and the capacity in which the representation is made (if the person is representing someone other than himself or herself), his or her position on the legislation under consideration, and the nature of his or her desired testimony.
 - (5) An audio recording of the proceedings.
 - (6) Documents submitted to the committee by persons providing testimony or registering in each committee meeting.
 - (7) Such additional information as may be requested by the Clerk.
- (d) The committee Chairperson, or the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus of a standing or special committee, shall file with the Clerk, along with every legislative measure reported upon, a written report containing such information as required by the Clerk. The Clerk may adopt forms, policies, and procedures with respect to the preparation, filing, and maintenance of the reports.
- (e) When a committee fails to report a legislative measure pending before it to the House, or when a committee fails to hold a public hearing on a legislative measure pending before it, the exclusive means to bring that legislative measure directly before the House for its consideration is as provided in Rule 18 or Rule 58.
- (f) No legislative measure may be called for a vote in a standing committee or special committee in the absence of the Principal Sponsor. The committee Chairperson, the committee Minority Spokesperson, or a chief co-sponsor may present a bill or resolution in committee with the approval of the Principal Sponsor when the committee consents. In the case of standing or special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the "Chairperson" means the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus, and the "Minority Spokesperson" means the Co-Chairperson from the minority caucus. This subsection may not be suspended.
- (g) Motions for committee approval of bills and resolutions are renewable, provided that no bill or resolution may be voted on more than twice in any committee on motions to report the bill or resolution favorably, or to reconsider the vote by which the committee adopted a motion to report the bill or resolution unfavorably. A bill or resolution having failed to receive a favorable recommendation after 2 such record votes shall be automatically reported with the appropriate unfavorable recommendation.

- (h) A bill or resolution shall be given short debate status by report of the committee if the bill or resolution was favorably reported by a three-fifths vote of the members present and voting, including those voting "present". Bills and resolutions receiving favorable reports may be placed upon the Consent Calendar as provided in Rule 42.
 - (i) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 23)

- 23. Witnesses, Oaths, and Subpoenae.
- (a) At the discretion of the Chairperson, standing committees may administer oaths and may compel, by subpoena, any person to appear and give testimony as a witness before the standing committee and produce papers, documents, and other materials relating to a legislative measure pending before the standing committee.
- (b) At the discretion of the Chairperson, special committees may administer oaths and may compel, by subpoena, any person to appear and give testimony before the special committee and produce papers, documents, and other materials relating to the subject matter for which the special committee was created or relating to a legislative measure pending before the special committee.
- (c) At the discretion of the Speaker, a Committee of the Whole may administer oaths and may compel, by subpoena, any person to appear and give testimony before the committee of the whole and produce papers, documents, and other materials relating to the subject matter for which the committee of the whole was created or relating to a legislative measure pending before the committee of the whole.
- (d) Oaths may be administered under this Rule by the Presiding Officer or by the Chairperson of a committee or any person sitting in his or her stead.
- (e) Subpoenae issued under this Rule must be issued and signed by the Chairperson of the committee and must comply with Rule 4(c)(9).
- (f) In the case of special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the term "Chairperson" for purposes of this Rule means the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus.
 - (g) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 24)

- 24. Committee Reports.
- (a) All bills favorably reported to the House from a committee, or with respect to which a committee has been discharged, shall be reported to the House and shall be placed on the order of Second Reading and assigned standard debate status, subject to Rule 52. Bills reported to the House from committee "do not pass", "do not pass as amended", "without recommendation", or "tabled" shall lie on the table.
- (b) All floor amendments, joint action motions for final action, conference committee reports, and motions to table committee amendments favorably reported from a standing committee or special committee shall be referred to the House and eligible for consideration when the House is on an appropriate order of business. Amendments to bills that are not on the order of Second Reading are out of order. All floor amendments,

joint action motions for final action, conference committee reports, and motions to table committee amendments that are reported to the House from committee "be not adopted", "without recommendation", or "tabled" shall lie on the table. When the Rules Committee refers a floor amendment, joint action motion for final action, conference committee report, or motion to table a committee amendment to a standing committee or a special committee that thereafter favorably reports that legislative measure to the House, the legislative measure shall be referred to the House, assigned standard debate status subject to Rule 52 (except floor amendments, which shall be assigned amendment debate status), and eligible for consideration when the House is on an appropriate order of business.

(c) All resolutions favorably reported to the House from the Rules Committee, a standing committee, or a special committee, or with respect to which the committee has been discharged, shall be referred to the House and placed on the order of Resolutions and assigned standard debate status, subject to Rule 52. All resolutions that are reported to the House from committee "be not adopted", "be not adopted as amended", "without recommendation", or "tabled" shall lie on the table.

(House Rule 25)

- 25. Suspension of Posting Requirements.
- (a) A motion to suspend the posting requirements of Rule 21 must be in writing, specifying the committee and the bills or resolutions to which the motion applies, be carried on the calendar before it may be taken up by the House, and adopted by the affirmative vote of 60 members elected. The calendar requirements of this Rule may be suspended only by unanimous consent. The requirement that the motion be in writing may not be suspended.
- (b) Except for those provisions that may not be suspended or that require unanimous consent, this Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 26)

- 26. Rights of the Public.
- (a) If a bill or resolution has been properly set for hearing and witnesses are present and wish to testify, the committee shall hear the witnesses at the scheduled time and place, subject to Rule 10(c).
- (b) Any person wishing to offer testimony to a committee hearing of a bill or resolution shall be given a reasonable opportunity to do so, orally or in writing. The Chairperson may set time limits for presentation of oral testimony. No testimony in writing is required of any witness, but any witness may submit a statement in writing for the committee record. All persons offering testimony shall complete a "Record of Committee Witness" form and submit it to the committee clerk before testifying. In the case of standing or special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the "Chairperson" means the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus.
- (c) A motion to foreclose further oral testimony by witnesses on a matter before a committee may be adopted only by a three-fifths majority of those voting on the motion. No such motion is in order until both proponents and opponents requesting to be heard

have been given a fair and substantial opportunity to express their positions. No one shall be prohibited from filing for the record "Record of Committee Witness" forms or written statements while the matter is before the committee.

- (d) Meetings of committees and subcommittees shall be open to the public. Committee meetings of the House may be closed to the public if two-thirds of the members elected to the House determine, by a record vote, that the public interest so requires.
 - (e) This Rule cannot be suspended retroactively.

(House Rule 27)

27. Smoking. Smoking is prohibited at any official committee hearing, and no committee member, staff member, or member of the public is permitted to smoke in the room in which the hearing is being held.

ARTICLE III CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

(House Rule 28)

- 28. Sessions of the House.
- (a) The House is in session whenever it convenes in perfunctory session, regular session, veto session, special session, or joint session with the Senate. Members are entitled to per diem expense reimbursements authorized by law only on those regular, veto, special session, and joint session days that they are in attendance at the House and either (i) are recorded as present on the quorum roll call or (ii) personally appear before the Clerk or the Clerk's designee after the quorum roll call but prior to the close of the Clerk's Office for the day. Attendance by members is not required or recorded on perfunctory session days.
- (b) Regular and veto session days shall be scheduled with notice by the Speaker under Rule 9. Special session days shall be scheduled in accordance with the Constitution and laws of Illinois. The Speaker may convene the House when deemed necessary, regardless of whether a different date or time has been established.
- (c) The Speaker may schedule perfunctory session days during which the Clerk may read into the House record any legislative measure. Committees may meet and may consider and act upon legislative measures during a perfunctory session day, and the Clerk may receive and read committee reports into the House record during a perfunctory day. Except for automatic referral under these Rules, no further action may be taken by the House with respect to a legislative measure during a perfunctory session day.

(House Rule 29)

29. Hour of Meeting. Unless otherwise ordered by the Speaker or Presiding Officer or as provided in Rule 1, the House shall regularly convene at 12:30 p.m. on the first day of each week that the House convenes in regular, veto, or special session and shall convene at noon on all other days.

(House Rule 30)

- 30. Access to the House Floor.
- (a) Except as otherwise provided in these Rules, only the following persons shall be admitted to the House while it is in session: members and officers of the General Assembly; elected officers of the executive branch; justices of the Supreme Court; the designated aide to the Governor, except as limited by the Speaker; the parliamentarian; majority staff members and minority staff members, except as limited by the Speaker or Presiding Officer; former members, except as limited by the Speaker or prohibited under subsection (d); and employees of the Legislative Reference Bureau, except as limited by the Speaker. Representatives of the press, while the House is in session, may have access to the galleries and places allotted to them by the Speaker. No person is entitled to the floor unless appropriately attired. Only members of the General Assembly may use telephones at the members' desks. Smoking is prohibited on the floor of the House and in the House galleries.
- (b) On days during which the House is in session, the Doorkeeper shall clear the floor of all persons not entitled to access to the floor 15 minutes before the convening time, and the Doorkeeper shall enforce all other provisions of this Rule.
- (c) The Speaker may authorize the admission to the floor of any other person, except as prohibited under subsection (d).
- (d) No person who is directly or indirectly interested in defeating or promoting any pending legislative measure, if required to be registered as a lobbyist, shall be allowed access to the floor of the House at any time during the session.
- (e) When he or she deems it necessary for the preservation of order, the Presiding Officer may by order remove any person from the floor of the House. A Representative may be removed from the floor only under Article XI or XII of these Rules.

(House Rule 31)

- 31. Standing Order of Business.
- (a) Unless otherwise determined by the Presiding Officer, the standing daily order of business of the House is as follows:
 - (1) Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance, and Roll Call.
 - (2) Approval of the Journal.
 - (3) Reading of House Bills a first time.
 - (4) Reports from committees, with reports from the Rules Committee ordinarily made at any time.
 - (5) Presentation of Resolutions, Petitions, and Messages.
 - (6) Introduction of House Bills.
 - (7) Messages from the Senate, not including reading Senate Bills a first time.
 - (8) Reading of House Bills a second time.
 - (9) Reading of House Bills a third time.
 - (10) Reading of Senate Bills a third time.
 - (11) Reading of Senate Bills a second time.
 - (12) Reading of Senate Bills a first time.

- (13) House Bills on the Order of Concurrence.
- (14) Senate Bills on the Order of Non-Concurrence.
- (15) Conference Committee Reports.
- (16) Motions in Writing.
- (17) Constitutional Amendment Resolutions.
- (18) Motions with respect to Vetoes.
- (19) Consideration of Resolutions.
- (20) Motions to Discharge Committee.
- (21) Motions to Take from the Table.
- (22) Motions to Suspend the Rules.
- (23) Consideration of Bills on the Order of Postponed Consideration.
- (b) The Speaker may establish a Weekly Order of Business or a Daily Order of Business setting forth the date and approximate time at which specific legislative measures may be considered by the House. The Weekly Order of Business or Daily Order of Business is effective upon being filed by the Speaker with the Clerk and takes the place of the standing order of business for the amount of time necessary for its completion. Nothing in this Rule, however, limits the Speaker's or Presiding Officer's powers under Rule 4(c) (3) or Rule 43 (a).
- (c) A special order of business may be set by the Rules Committee or by the Speaker as provided in Rule 44.
 - (d) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 32)

- 32. Quorum.
- (a) A majority of those elected constitutes a quorum of the House, and a majority of those appointed constitutes a quorum of a committee, but a smaller number may adjourn from day to day, or recess for less than one day, and compel the attendance of absent members. The attendance of absent members may also be compelled by order of the Speaker.
- (b) The question of the presence of a quorum in any committee may not be raised on consideration of a legislative measure by the House unless the same question was previously raised before the committee with respect to that legislative measure.
- (c) Any member not answering the quorum roll call of the House on any session day who is in attendance and wishes to be added to that quorum roll call must file a request to be shown present on the quorum roll call with the Clerk. The request must be in writing and filed in person by the member on the same calendar day the quorum roll call was taken.

(House Rule 33)

33. Approval of the Journal. The Speaker or his or her designee shall periodically examine and report to the House any corrections he or she deems should be made in the Journal before it is approved. If those corrections are approved by the House, they shall be made by the Clerk.

(House Rule 34)

34. Executive Sessions. The sessions of the House shall be open to the public. Sessions and committee meetings of the House may be closed to the public if two-thirds of the members elected determine, by a record vote, that the public interest so requires.

(House Rule 35)

35. Length of Adjournment. The House, without the consent of the Senate, shall not adjourn for more than 3 days or to a place other than where the 2 chambers of the General Assembly are sitting. The House is in session on any day in which it convenes in perfunctory session, regular session, veto session, special session, or joint session with the Senate.

(House Rule 36)

36. Transcript of the House. Nothing contained in the official transcript of the House shall be changed or expunged except by written request of a Representative to the Clerk and Speaker, and that request may be approved only by the record vote of 71 members elected.

ARTICLE IV BILLS AND AMENDMENTS

(House Rule 37)

- 37. Bills.
- (a) A bill may be introduced in the House by sponsorship of one or more members of the House, whose names shall be on the reproduced copies of the bills, in the House Journal, and in the Legislative Digest. The Principal Sponsor shall be the first name to appear on the bill and may be joined by no more than 4 chief co-sponsors with the approval of the Principal Sponsor; other co-sponsors shall be separated from the Principal Sponsor and any chief co-sponsors by a comma. The Principal Sponsor may change the sponsorship of a bill to that of one or more other Representatives, or to that of the standing committee or special committee to which the bill was referred or from which the bill was reported. Such change may be made at any time the bill is pending before the House or any of its committees by filing a notice with the Clerk, provided that the addition of any member as a Principal Sponsor, chief co-sponsor, or co-sponsor must be with that member's consent. This subsection may not be suspended.
- (b) The Principal Sponsor of a bill controls that bill. A committee-sponsored bill is controlled by the Chairperson, or if Co-Chairpersons have been appointed, by the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus, who for purposes of these Rules is deemed the Principal Sponsor. Committee-sponsored bills may not have individual co-sponsors.
- (c) The Senate sponsor of a bill originating in the Senate may request substitute House sponsorship of that bill by filing a notice with the Clerk. Such notice is automatically referred to the Rules Committee. The notice shall include the bill number, signature of the Senate sponsor, signature of the substitute House sponsor, and a

statement that the original House sponsor was provided with notice of intent to request a substitute House sponsor. A notice that satisfies the requirements of this subsection shall be approved by the Rules Committee. If the Rules Committee does not act on a notice that satisfies the requirements of this subsection within 3 legislative days after its referral, then the notice is deemed approved and the Clerk shall substitute sponsorship. This subsection shall be in effect if, and only for so long as, the Rules of the Senate include a reciprocal privilege for House sponsors and the Senate complies with the rule. This subsection may not be suspended.

- (d) All bills introduced in the House shall be read by title a first time, ordered reproduced and distributed in accordance with Rule 39, and automatically referred to the Rules Committee in accordance with Rule 18. After a Senate Bill is received and a House member has submitted notification to the Clerk of sponsorship of that bill, it shall be read by title, ordered reproduced and distributed in accordance with Rule 39, and automatically referred to the Rules Committee in accordance with Rule 18.
- (e) All bills introduced into the House shall be accompanied by 2 copies. Any bill that amends a statute shall indicate the particular changes in the following manner:
 - (1) All new matter shall be underscored.
 - (2) All matter that is to be omitted or superseded shall be shown crossed with a line.
- (f) No bill shall be passed by the House except on a record vote of a majority of those elected, subject to Rule 69. A bill that has lost on third reading and has not been reconsidered may not thereafter be revived. If a motion for the adoption of a first conference committee report fails and the motion is not reconsidered, then a second conference committee may be appointed as provided in Rule 76(c). If a motion for the adoption of a second conference committee report fails and is not reconsidered, then the bill may not thereafter be revived.

(**House Rule 37.5**)

- 37.5. Amendments to Taxpayer Accountability and Budget Stabilization Act.
- (a) From the commencement of the 97th General Assembly until June 30, 2015, no bill that amends or refers to Section 201.5 of the Illinois Income Tax Act, or that seeks to appropriate or transfer money pursuant to a declaration of a fiscal emergency under Section 201.5 of that Act, may be moved from the order of Second Reading to the order of Third Reading unless a motion to approve such measure for consideration has been adopted by a record vote of 71 members. If such a bill is on the order of concurrence or in the form of a conference committee report, no motion to concur or to adopt that conference committee report is in order unless a motion to approve such measure for consideration has been adopted by a record vote of 71 members. Nothing in this House Rule shall be deemed to alter the vote requirement for final passage of a legislative measure required by the Illinois Constitution.
- (b) Any motion made pursuant to subsection (a) to approve a legislative measure for consideration must be in writing. Upon receipt of the written motion, the Clerk shall immediately notify the Speaker and the Minority Leader. The motion shall not be referred

to a committee. The motion must be carried on the calendar before it may be taken up by the House and may then be immediately considered and adopted by the House. The motion is renewable and may be reconsidered, provided that once that motion is adopted, it shall not be reconsidered.

(c) This Rule may not be suspended except by unanimous consent.

(**House Rule 37.6**)

- 37.6. Amendments to State Pension Funds Continuing Appropriation Act.
- (a) From the commencement of the 97th General Assembly until June 30, 2015, no bill that amends or refers to the State Pension Funds Continuing Appropriation Act may be moved from the order of Second Reading to the order of Third Reading unless a motion to approve such measure for consideration has been adopted by a record vote of 71 members. If such a bill is on the order of concurrence or in the form of a conference committee report, no motion to concur or to adopt that conference committee report is in order unless a motion to approve such measure for consideration has been adopted by a record vote of 71 members. Nothing in this House Rule shall be deemed to alter the vote requirement for final passage of a legislative measure required by the Illinois Constitution.
- (b) Any motion made pursuant to subsection (a) to approve a legislative measure for consideration must be in writing. Upon receipt of the written motion, the Clerk shall immediately notify the Speaker and the Minority Leader. The motion shall not be referred to a committee. The motion must be carried on the calendar before it may be taken up by the House and may then be immediately considered and adopted by the House. The motion is renewable and may be reconsidered, provided that once that motion is adopted, it shall not be reconsidered.
 - (c) This Rule may not be suspended except by unanimous consent.

(House Rule 38)

38. Reading of Bills. Every bill shall be read by title on 3 different days before passage by the House.

(House Rule 39)

39. Reproduction and Distribution. The Clerk shall cause any measure subject to this Rule to be reproduced and placed upon the desks of the members. Reproduction and distribution may be done electronically, or the Clerk may establish a method that any member may use to secure a copy.

(House Rule 40)

- 40. Amendments.
- (a) An amendment to a bill may be adopted by a standing committee or special committee when the bill is before that committee. An amendment to a bill may be adopted by the House when a bill is on the order of Second Reading if: (i) the Rules Committee has referred the floor amendment to the House for consideration under Rule 18; (ii) a

standing committee or special committee has referred the floor amendment to the House; or (iii) the floor amendment has been discharged from committee pursuant to Rule 18(g) or Rule 58. All amendments must be in writing and reproduced and distributed as provided in Rule 39. All committee amendments that have been referred to a standing committee or special committee by the Rules Committee shall be considered by the committee or a subcommittee of that committee prior to consideration by the committee of the bill to which the amendment relates. All committee amendments not adopted to a bill prior to the favorable reporting of the bill by a standing committee or special committee are automatically tabled. All floor amendments not adopted to a bill and that are still pending in a committee or before the House upon the passage or defeat of a bill on Third Reading are automatically tabled, provided that any floor amendment tabled pursuant to this Rule shall automatically be taken from the table upon the adoption of a motion to reconsider the vote for the passage or defeat of the bill on Third Reading.

- (b) Except as otherwise provided in these Rules, committee amendments may be offered only by the Principal Sponsor or a member of the committee while the affected bill is before that committee, and shall be adopted by a majority of those appointed. Floor amendments may be offered for adoption only by a Representative while the bill is on the order of Second Reading, subject to Rule 18, and shall be adopted by a majority vote of the House. The sponsor of a committee or floor amendment may change the sponsorship of the amendment to that of another member, with that other member's consent. Such change may be made at any time the amendment is pending before the House or any of its committees by filing notice with the Clerk. A committee amendment may be the subject of a motion to "do adopt" or "do not adopt". A committee amendment may be adopted only by a successful motion to "do adopt". The Chairperson of a committee may refer any committee amendment to a subcommittee of that committee.
- (c) Committee amendments shall be filed with the Clerk no later than 3:00 p.m. the business day before a meeting at which the bill or resolution it amends may be considered. Floor amendments shall be filed with the Clerk only while the bill is on the order of Second Reading or Third Reading. Amendments are in order only when 6 copies have been filed. The Clerk shall number amendments sequentially in the order submitted, and all amendments that are in order shall be considered in ascending numerical order.
- (d) No amendment shall be filed with the Clerk while a bill is assigned to the Rules Committee. Committee amendments may be filed for a resolution pending in the Rules Committee only if the resolution would adopt or amend House Rules or Joint House-Senate Rules pursuant to Rule 67.
- (e) No floor amendment is in order unless it has been first referred to the House for consideration by the Rules Committee under Rule 18, or favorably reported by, or discharged from, a standing committee or special committee. A floor amendment may be referred to the House for consideration, or to a standing or special committee, only while the bill is on the order of Second Reading or Third Reading.
- (f) Amendments that propose to alter any existing law shall conform to the requirements of Rule 37(e).

- (g) If a committee reports a bill "do pass as amended", the committee amendments are deemed adopted by the committee action.
- (h) Floor amendments to resolutions are subject to the same procedure applicable to floor amendments to bills.
- (i) In the case of special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the "Chairperson" for the purposes of this Rule is the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus.

(House Rule 41)

- 41. Note Requests; Quick Takes.
- (a) The House shall comply with all Illinois laws requiring fiscal or other notes. The notes shall be filed with the Clerk, who shall affix each note with a time stamp endorsing the date and time received, and attached to the original of the bill and available for inspection by the members. As soon as practical, the Clerk shall provide a copy of the note to the Legislative Reference Bureau, which shall provide an informative summary of the note in subsequent issues of the Legislative Digest.
- (b) No bill authorizing or directing the conveyance by the State of any particular interest in real estate to any individual or entity other than a governmental unit or agency may be voted upon in committee or upon Second Reading unless a certified appraisal of the value of the interest has been filed. The appraisal shall be filed with the Clerk of the House, and shall be part of the permanent record for that bill.
- (c) No bill authorizing the State or a unit of local government to acquire property by eminent domain using "quick-take" powers under the Eminent Domain Act may be voted upon in committee or on Second Reading unless the State or the unit of local government, as applicable, has complied with all of the following procedures:
 - (1) The State or the unit of local government must notify each owner of an interest in the property, by certified mail, of the intention of the State or the unit of local government to request approval of legislation by the General Assembly authorizing the State or the unit of local government to acquire the property by eminent domain using "quick-take" powers under Section 7-103 of the Code of Civil Procedure.
 - (2) The State or the unit of local government must cause notice of its intention to request authorization to acquire the property by eminent domain using "quick-take" powers to be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the territory sought to be acquired by the State or the unit of local government.
 - (3) Following the notices required under paragraphs (1) and (2), the State or the unit of local government must hold at least one public hearing, at the place where the unit of local government normally holds its business meetings (or, in the case of property sought to be acquired by the State: (i) at a location in the county in which the property sought to be acquired by the State is located, or (ii) if the property is located in Cook County, at a location in the township in which the property is located, or (iii) if the

- property is located in 2 adjacent counties other than Cook County or in 2 adjacent townships in Cook County, at a location in the county or in the township in Cook County in which the majority of the property is located, or (iv) if the property is located in Cook County and an adjacent county, at a location in the other county or in the township in Cook County in which the majority of the property is located), on the question of the acquisition of the property by the State or the unit of local government by eminent domain using "quick-take" powers.
- (4) In the case of property sought to be acquired by a unit of local government, following the public hearing or hearings held under paragraph (3), the unit of local government must adopt, by recorded vote, a resolution to request approval of legislation by the General Assembly authorizing the unit of local government to acquire the property by eminent domain using "quick-take" powers under the Eminent Domain Act. The resolution must include a statement of the time period within which the unit of local government requests authority to exercise "quick-take" powers, which may not exceed one year.
- (5) Following the public hearing or hearings held under paragraph (3), the head of the appropriate State office, department, or agency or the chief elected official of the unit of local government, as applicable, must submit to the Chairperson and Minority Spokesperson of the House Executive Committee a sworn, notarized affidavit that contains, or has attached as an incorporated exhibit, all of the following:
- (A) The legal description of the property.
- (B) The street address of the property.
- (C) The name of each State Senator and State Representative who represents the territory that is the subject of the proposed taking.
- (D) The date or dates on which the State or the unit of local government contacted each such State Senator and State Representative concerning the intention of the State or the unit of local government to request approval of legislation by the General Assembly authorizing the State or the unit of local government to acquire the property by eminent domain using "quick-take" powers.
- (E) The current name, address, and telephone number of each owner of an interest in the property.
- (F) A summary of all negotiations between the State or the unit of local government and the owner or owners of the property concerning the sale of the property to the State or the unit of local government.
- (G) A statement of the date and location of each public hearing held under paragraph (3).
- (H) A statement of the public purpose for which the State or the unit of local government seeks to acquire the property.
- (I) The certification of the head of the appropriate State office, department, or agency or the chief elected official of the unit of local government, as applicable, that (i)

the property is located within the territory under the jurisdiction of the State or the unit of local government and (ii) the State or the unit of local government seeks to acquire the property for a public purpose.

- (J) A map of the area in which the property to be acquired is located, showing the location of the property.
 - (K) Photographs of the property.
- (L) An appraisal of the property by a real estate appraiser who is certified or licensed under the Real Estate Appraiser Licensing Act of 2002.
- (M) In the case of property sought to be acquired by a unit of local government, a copy of the resolution adopted by the unit of local government under paragraph (4).
- (N) Documentation of the public purpose for which the State or the unit of local government seeks to acquire the property.
- (O) A copy of each notice sent to an owner of an interest in the property under paragraph (1).

A request for quick-take authority shall not be considered by a House committee fewer than 30 days after the date of the notice to each property owner as required by paragraph (1).

Every affidavit submitted by the State or a unit of local government pursuant to this Rule 41(c), together with all documents and other items submitted with the affidavit, must be made available to any person upon request for inspection and copying.

(House Rule 42)

- 42. Consent Calendar.
- (a) The Clerk shall include a Consent Calendar on the daily calendar and designate it as a separate calendar. The Consent Calendar shall contain 3 orders of business: Consent Calendar Second Reading, Consent Calendar Third Reading, and Consent Calendar Resolutions. Within each order of business, bills or resolutions shall be listed in separate groups according to the number of required days each has been on that order of business on the Consent Calendar. No more than 80 bills and resolutions shall be listed in each group. All bills or resolutions to which amendments have been adopted shall be so designated.
- (b) No debate is in order regarding any item on the Consent Calendar. The Presiding Officer, however, shall allow a reasonable time for questions from the floor and answers to those questions. No amendment from the floor is in order regarding any bill or resolution on the Consent Calendar.
- (c) A bill on the Consent Calendar shall stand for 2 legislative days on the order of Consent Calendar Second Reading, and for at least 2 legislative days on the order of Consent Calendar Third Reading, before a vote on the final passage may be taken. Resolutions on the Consent Calendar shall stand for at least 4 legislative days before a vote on adoption may be taken. One record vote on final passage shall be taken on those bills called for final passage. Immediately before a vote on the bills on the Consent Calendar, the Presiding Officer shall call to the attention of the members the fact that the next legislative action will be the vote on the Consent Calendar.

- (d) A bill or resolution may be placed on the Consent Calendar by report of a standing committee upon a motion adopted by a unanimous vote of the members present. For purposes of this subsection (d), a unanimous vote on the motion is a vote with no member voting nay.
- (e) No bill regarding revenue or appropriations may be placed on the Consent Calendar. No resolution requiring more than 60 affirmative votes for adoption and no bill requiring more than 60 affirmative votes for passage by the House may be placed on the Consent Calendar.
- (f) The Speaker and the Minority Leader shall each appoint 3 members who may challenge the presence of any bill or resolution on the Consent Calendar. Before a vote on final passage of any item on the Consent Calendar, an item shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if (i) 4 or more members, (ii) the Principal Sponsor of the bill or resolution, or (iii) one or more of the appointed challengers file with the Clerk written objections to the presence of the bill or resolution on the Consent Calendar. Any bill or resolution so removed may not be placed thereafter on the Consent Calendar during that session of the General Assembly, unless the member or members who objected to the presence of the bill or resolution on the Consent Calendar consent in writing to restoration of the bill or resolution on the Consent Calendar.

Any bill removed from the Consent Calendar shall stand on the order of Second Reading with short debate status, subject to Rule 52, and any resolution so removed shall stand on the order of Resolutions with short debate status, subject to Rule 52.

(House Rule 43)

- 43. Changing Order of Business.
- (a) Any order of business may be changed at any time by the Speaker or Presiding Officer.
- (b) Any order of business may be changed at any time upon the motion of any member, supported by 5 additional members, if the motion is adopted by an affirmative vote of 71 members elected.
- (c) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 44)

- 44. Special Orders; Rules Committee.
- (a) A special order of business may be set by the Rules Committee or by the Speaker. The Principal Sponsor of a bill or resolution must consent to the placement of the bill or resolution on a special order. A special order shall fix the day to which it applies and the matters to be included. The Speaker, or the Rules Committee by a vote of a majority of the members appointed, may establish time limits for a special order and may establish limitations on debate during a special order (notwithstanding Rule 52), in which event the allotted time shall be fairly divided between proponents and opponents of the legislation to be considered. A special order of business takes the place of the standing

order for such time as may be necessary for its completion. Only matters that may otherwise properly be before the House may be included in a special order.

- (b) A special order shall appear on the Daily Calendar for 3 legislative days. This subsection (b) may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.
- (c) A special order may be suspended, amended, or modified by motion adopted by an affirmative vote of 60 members. A special order shall be suspended by a written objection signed by 3 members of the Rules Committee and filed during the first legislative day on which the special order appears on the calendar.

ARTICLE V RESOLUTIONS AND CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION

(House Rule 45)

- 45. Resolutions.
- (a) A resolution may be introduced in the House by sponsorship of one or more members of the House. The name of the Principal Sponsor shall be included in the House Journal, and the names of all sponsors shall be included in the Legislative Digest. The Principal Sponsor of a resolution, or the sponsor of an amendment to a resolution, may change the sponsorship of the resolution or amendment, as applicable, to that of another member, with that other member's consent, by filing notice with the Clerk. Each resolution introduced shall be accompanied by 2 copies.
- (b) The Principal Sponsor of a resolution controls that resolution. A standing committee-sponsored resolution is controlled by the Chairperson of the committee, or if Co-Chairpersons have been appointed, by the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus, who for purposes of these Rules is deemed the Principal Sponsor. A special committee-sponsored resolution is controlled by the Chairperson, or if Co-Chairpersons have been appointed, by the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus, who for purposes of these Rules is deemed the Principal Sponsor. Committee-sponsored resolutions may not have individual co-sponsors.
- (c) Any resolution calling for the expenditure of State funds may be adopted only by a record vote of a majority of those elected.

(House Rule 46)

46. State Constitutional Amendments. All resolutions introduced in the House proposing amendments to the Illinois Constitution shall be reproduced and distributed as provided in Rule 39. Every such resolution that originated in the Senate and is presented to the House shall be ordered reproduced and distributed in like manner. No such resolution shall pass unless read in full in its final form on 3 different days. Amendments are in order only on First Reading and Second Reading. Upon adoption of any amendment, the Clerk shall read the amended resolution in full form on 3 different days. Final passage requires the affirmative vote of 71 members elected. No resolution proposing a change in the Constitution of the State of Illinois may be considered for

passage after the last day preceding the day marking the beginning of the last 6 months before the general election occurring during the term of this General Assembly, and all such resolutions still pending shall be tabled at the end of business on that day.

(House Rule 47)

- 47. Federal Constitutional Amendments and Constitutional Conventions.
- (a) The affirmative vote of 71 of the members elected is required to adopt any resolution:
 - (1) requesting Congress to call a federal constitutional convention;
 - (2) ratifying a proposed amendment to the Constitution of the United States; or
 - (3) calling a State convention to ratify a proposed amendment to the Constitution of the United States.
 - (b) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 48)

48. Certificates of Recognition. Any member may sponsor a certificate of recognition to be signed by the Speaker and attested by the Clerk to recognize any person, organization, or event worthy of public commendation. The form of the Certificate of Recognition shall be determined by the Clerk with the approval of the Speaker.

ARTICLE VI PARLIAMENTARY PRACTICE

(House Rule 49)

49. Voting. The Presiding Officer shall put all questions distinctly, as follows: "All those in favor vote AYE, and those opposed vote NAY." No member may vote on any question before the House unless on the floor before the vote is announced. No member of a committee may vote except in person at the time of the call of the committee vote. Any vote of the House shall be by record vote whenever 5 Representatives shall so request or whenever the Presiding Officer shall so order.

(House Rule 50)

50. Announcing a Record Vote. When a record vote is requested, the Presiding Officer shall put the question and then announce to the House: "The voting is open." While the vote is being taken, the Presiding Officer shall state: "Have all voted who wish?" The voting is closed when the Presiding Officer announces: "Take the Record." The Presiding Officer, unless an intervening motion to postpone consideration by the Principal Sponsor is made, shall then announce the results of the record vote. After the record is taken, no member may vote, change his or her vote, or remove his or her vote as recorded; except that when a record vote is taken on more than one legislative measure at the same time, each member has the right to have his or her votes recorded separately for

each of those legislative measures by filing a signed document with the Clerk on the same legislative day.

(House Rule 51)

- 51. Decorum.
- (a) When any member is about to speak to the House, he or she shall rise and address the Presiding Officer as "Speaker". The Presiding Officer, upon recognizing the member, shall address him or her by name, and thereupon the engineer in charge of operating the microphones in the House shall give the use of the microphone to the member who has been so recognized. The member in speaking shall confine himself or herself to the subject matter under discussion and avoid personalities.
- (b) Questions affecting the rights, reputation, and conduct of members of the House in their representative capacity are questions of personal privilege. A matter of personal explanation does not constitute a question of personal privilege.
- (c) If 2 or more members rise at once, the Presiding Officer shall name the member who is to speak first.
- (d) No person shall give any signs of approbation or disapprobation while the House is in session.
- (e) Recognition of guests by any member is prohibited, except that the Speaker or Presiding Officer may recognize an honored guest.
- (f) While the Presiding Officer is putting a question, no member shall leave or walk across the House Chamber. When a member is addressing the House, no member or other person entitled to the floor shall entertain private discourse or pass between the member speaking and the Presiding Officer.
- (g) In case of any disturbance or disorderly conduct, the Speaker or Presiding Officer may order that the lobby, gallery, or hallways adjoining the House Chamber be cleared.
 - (h) No literature may be distributed on the House floor.
- (i) No member may be absent from a session of the House unless he or she has leave or is sick or his or her absence is unavoidable. The switch to the electrical roll call recording equipment located on the desk of any member who has been excused or is absent shall be locked by the Clerk and shall not be unlocked until the member returns and files with the Clerk a request to be shown as present on the quorum roll call as provided in Rule 32(c).

(House Rule 52)

- 52. Debate.
- (a) All legislative measures, except those legislative measures that are not debatable as provided in these Rules, are subject to a debate status as follows:
 - Short Debate: Debate is limited to a 2-minute presentation by the Principal Sponsor or a member designated by the Principal Sponsor, a 2-minute presentation by a member in response, and one minute for the Principal Sponsor to close debate, or yield to other members; provided that at the

- request of 7 members before the close of debate, the debate status shall be opened to standard debate;
- 2. Standard Debate: Debate is limited to a 5-minute presentation by the Principal Sponsor or a member designated by the Principal Sponsor, debate by each of 2 additional proponents of the legislative measure and by 3 members in response to the legislative measure, and 3 minutes for the Principal Sponsor to close debate, or yield to other members;
- 3. Extended Debate: Debate is limited to a 5-minute presentation by the Principal Sponsor or a member designated by the Principal Sponsor, debate by each of 4 proponents of the legislative measure and 5 members in response, and 5 minutes for the Principal Sponsor to close debate, or yield to other members;
- 4. Unlimited Debate: Debate shall consist of a 10-minute presentation by the Principal Sponsor or a member designated by the Principal Sponsor, debate by each proponent and member in response who seeks recognition, and 5 minutes for the Principal Sponsor to close debate, or yield to other members; or
- 5. Amendment Debate: Debate on floor amendments referred to the House from a committee, or discharged from a committee, is limited to a 3-minute presentation by the Principal Sponsor, or a member designated by the Principal Sponsor, debate by one proponent, debate by each of 2 members in response, and 3 minutes for the Principal Sponsor to close debate, or yield to other members. No debate is in order on bills or resolutions on the order of First Reading or Second Reading, except for debate on floor amendments as provided in this Rule.
- (b) All legislative measures, except floor amendments, referred to the House from a committee, or discharged from a committee, are automatically assigned standard debate status, subject to subsection (c) of this Rule, except those assigned to the Consent Calendar or short debate status by a standing committee or a special committee. All floor amendments referred to the House from a committee, or discharged from a committee, are automatically assigned amendment debate status, subject to subsection (c) of this Rule.
- (c) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Rules to the contrary (except Rule 44), the debate status of any legislative measure may be changed only (i) by the Speaker, as defined in item (27) of Rule 102, by filing a notice with the Clerk, or (ii) by the Rules Committee by motion approved by a majority of those appointed. While a legislative measure is being considered by the House, the debate status may also be changed by unanimous consent. No legislative measure, however, may be placed on the Consent Calendar under this Rule. No legislative measure, except a floor amendment, may be assigned amendment debate status under this Rule.
- (d) The Speaker or Rules Committee, as the case may be, shall notify the Clerk of any action to change the debate status of any legislative measure. The Clerk shall cause that information to be reflected on the Daily Calendar on subsequent legislative days, provided the legislative measure is still before the House.

- (e) No member shall speak longer than 5 minutes at one time or more than once on the same question except by leave of the House. The Principal Sponsor of a measure or a member designated by the Principal Sponsor, however, shall be allowed to open the debate and to close the debate in accordance with subsection (a) of this Rule. The provisions of this subsection (e) are subject to and limited by subsections (a), (b), and (c) of this Rule. A member may yield to another member the time allotted for the member's debate.
- (f) The Presiding Officer shall allocate the debate on each legislative measure alternately, if possible, between proponents and opponents of the legislative measure under debate.
 - (g) This Rule may not be suspended.

(House Rule 53)

- 53. Written Statements.
- (a) Any member may submit a written statement regarding any bill, resolution, or floor amendment considered by the House, by submitting that statement to the Clerk within one legislative day or 3 business days, whichever is shorter, after the day on which the bill, resolution, or floor amendment to which the comments relate was considered by the House. The Clerk shall affix a time stamp to each statement indicating the date on which the statement was submitted. Each statement shall indicate the member or members on whose behalf the statement is submitted, the bill, resolution, or floor amendment to which it applies, the names of any other members mentioned in the statement, and the person who actually submits the statement to the Clerk. Each member on whose behalf a statement is submitted is under an obligation to ensure that all required information, specifically including the names of any other members mentioned in the statement, is indicated at the time a statement is submitted. Each statement shall comply with standards as may be established by the Clerk with the approval of the Speaker. The standards established by the Clerk, however, shall not relate to the contents of the written statement. The Clerk shall maintain statements that comply with this Rule and established standards in files for each bill and resolution. A statement is not considered filed until the Clerk has determined that it complies with this Rule and established standards. The Clerk shall notify the member or members on whose behalf a statement was submitted if the statement is determined not to comply. Statements filed under this Rule shall be considered part of the transcript and made available to the public.
- (b) If a statement mentions another member, the statement shall not be considered filed until the member mentioned has an opportunity to respond as a matter of personal privilege. The Clerk shall notify each member who is identified at the time a statement is submitted as being mentioned in the statement. The member identified as mentioned in the statement shall have one legislative day or 3 business days, whichever is shorter, after notification by the Clerk in which to file a written response to the statement. The original statement and any responsive statement shall both be considered filed at the close of business on the final day on which a response may be filed. If, however, a statement is submitted mentioning another member and the name of the member mentioned is not

indicated to the Clerk at the time of submission, the statement shall be stricken at the request of the member mentioned in the statement. The Clerk shall notify each member on whose behalf the statement was submitted that the statement has been stricken from the record.

(c) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 54)

- 54. Motions.
- (a) The following are general rules for all motions:
 - (1) Every motion, except to adjourn, recess, or postpone consideration, shall be reduced to writing if ordered by the Presiding Officer. Unless otherwise provided in these Rules, no second is required to any motion presented to the House, or in any committee. The Presiding Officer may refer any motion to the Rules Committee.
 - (2) Before the House debates a motion, the Presiding Officer shall state an oral motion and the Clerk shall read aloud a written motion. Each motion, unless otherwise provided in these Rules, is assigned standard debate status, subject to Rule 52.
 - (3) After a motion is stated by the Presiding Officer or read by the Clerk, it is deemed in the possession of the House, but may be withdrawn at any time before decision with consent of a majority of the members elected.
 - (4) If a motion is divisible, any member may call for a division of the question.
 - (5) Any question taken under consideration may be withdrawn, postponed, or tabled by unanimous consent or, if unanimous consent is denied, by a motion adopted by a majority of the members elected.
- (b) The Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 55)

- 55. Precedence of Motions.
- (a) When a question is under debate, no motion may be entertained except:
 - (1) to adjourn to a time certain;
 - (2) to adjourn;
 - (3) to question the presence of a quorum;
 - (4) to recess;
 - (5) to lay on the table;
 - (6) for the previous question;
 - (7) to postpone consideration;
 - (8) to commit or recommit; or
 - (9) to amend, except as otherwise provided in these Rules.

The foregoing motions have precedence in the order in which they are listed.

(b) During a record vote, no motion (except a motion to postpone consideration) is in order until after the announcement of the result of the vote.

(c) A motion to commit or re-commit, until it is decided, precludes all amendments and debate on the main question. A motion to postpone consideration, until it is decided, precludes all amendments and debate on the main question.

(House Rule 56)

- 56. Verification.
- (a) After any record vote, except for a vote that requires a specific number of affirmative votes and that has not received the required votes, and before intervening business, it is in order for any member to request verification of the results of the record vote, except that (i) a member voting in the affirmative may not request verification of the affirmative votes and (ii) a member voting in the negative may not request a verification of the negative votes. If a member is disqualified from requesting a verification because of his or her vote, a qualifying member who makes a subsequent request for a verification shall be allowed to proceed with the verification.
- (b) In verifying a record vote, the Presiding Officer shall instruct the Clerk to call the names of those members whose votes are to be verified. The member requesting the verification may thereafter identify those members he or she wishes to verify. If a member does not answer, his or her vote shall be stricken; the member's vote shall be restored to the roll, however, if his or her presence is recognized before the Presiding Officer announces the final result of the verification. The Presiding Officer shall determine the presence or absence of each member whose name is called, and shall then announce the results of the verification.
- (c) While the results of any record vote are being verified, it is in order for any member to announce his or her presence on the floor and thereby have his or her vote verified.
- (d) A request for a verification of the affirmative and negative results of a record vote may be made only once on each record vote.

(House Rule 57)

- 57. Appealing a Ruling.
- (a) If any appeal is taken from a ruling of the Presiding Officer, the Presiding Officer shall be sustained unless 71 of the members elected vote to overrule the Presiding Officer. Notwithstanding Rule 52, debate on a motion to appeal is limited to a 2-minute presentation by the Principal Sponsor or a member designated by the Principal Sponsor, a 2-minute presentation by a member in response, and one-minute for the Principal Sponsor to close debate, or yield to other members. A motion to appeal is not in order if the House has conducted intervening business since the ruling at issue was made.
- (b) If any appeal is taken from a ruling of a committee Chairperson, the Chairperson shall be sustained unless three-fifths of those appointed vote to overrule the Chairperson. A motion to appeal is not in order if the committee has adjourned or recessed, or if intervening business has occurred. In the case of special committees with Co-Chairpersons from different political parties, the "Chairperson" for purposes of this Rule is the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus.

- (c) In an appeal of a ruling of the Presiding Officer or Chairperson, the question is: "Shall the ruling of the Chair be sustained?"
 - (d) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 58)

- 58. Discharge of Committee.
- (a) Any member may move that a standing committee or a special committee be discharged from consideration of any legislative measure assigned to it and not reported back unfavorably.
- (b) The motion must be in writing and shall be carried on the Daily Calendar for the next legislative day under the order of "Motions". No action shall be taken on the motion until it is on the calendar.
- (c) If the motion receives an affirmative vote of 60 members, the legislative measure subject to the motion shall be referred to the House and placed on the appropriate order of business.
 - (d) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 59)

- 59. Previous Question.
- (a) A motion for the previous question may be made at any time, except that a member may not move the previous question while participating in debate pursuant to Rule 52. A motion for the previous question is not debatable and requires the affirmative vote of 60 members elected.
- (b) The previous question shall be stated in the following form: "Shall the main question be put?" Until the previous question is decided, all amendments and debate are precluded. When it is decided that the main question shall not be put, the main question remains under debate.
- (c) The effect of the main question being ordered is to put an end to all debate and bring the House to a direct vote on the immediately pending motion. After a motion for the previous question has been approved, it is not in order to move for adjournment or to make any other motion before a decision on the main question.
 - (d) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 60)

- 60. Tabling.
- (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (d) and (e), a motion to lay on the table applies only to the particular proposition and is neither debatable nor amendable.
- (b) A motion to table a bill or resolution shall identify the bill or resolution by number. The Principal Sponsor of a bill or resolution may, with leave of the House, table that bill or resolution at any time. A motion to table a committee bill that is before the House may be adopted only by the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected.
- (c) The Principal Sponsor of a bill or resolution before a committee may, with leave of the committee, table the bill or resolution. Upon tabling, the Chairperson of the

committee shall return the bill or resolution to the Clerk, noting thereon that it has been tabled.

- (d) If a floor amendment to a bill has been adopted by the House, then a motion to table that amendment is in order and may be adopted only when the bill is on Second Reading. If a floor amendment to a resolution has been adopted by the House, then a motion to table that amendment is in order and may be adopted only when the resolution is pending before the House. Motions to table floor amendments are debatable and may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected.
- (e) If a committee amendment to a bill has been adopted by a committee, then a motion to table that amendment is in order and may be adopted (i) by that committee at any time while the bill is before that committee or (ii) by the House only when the bill is on Second Reading. If a committee amendment to a resolution has been adopted by a committee, then a motion to table that amendment is in order and may be adopted (i) by the committee at any time while the resolution is before that committee or (ii) by the House only when the resolution is pending before the House. No motion to table a committee amendment to a bill or resolution before the House is in order unless it has been first referred to the House for consideration by the Rules Committee under Rule 18, or by a standing or special committee. Motions to table committee amendments are debatable and may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members elected to the House or appointed to the committee, as applicable.

(House Rule 61)

- 61. Motion to Take from Table.
- (a) A motion to take from the table requires the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected if the Rules Committee has previously recommended that action by written notice filed with the Clerk; otherwise, a motion to take from the table requires the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.
- (b) A bill taken from the table shall, as applicable, (i) be placed on the Daily Calendar on the order on which it appeared before it was tabled or (ii) be returned to the committee to which it was assigned before it was tabled.
- (b-5) An amendment taken from the table shall be returned to the position it held before it was tabled, provided that a floor amendment may be taken from the table only while the bill is on the order of Second Reading and a committee amendment may be taken from the table only while the bill is in committee.
 - (c) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 62)

62. Motion to Postpone Consideration. A motion to postpone consideration on a bill or resolution may not be made more than once on the same bill or resolution. Unless otherwise provided by these Rules, a motion to postpone consideration shall be granted as a matter of privilege; no motion to postpone consideration is in order, however, if the bill or resolution initially received an affirmative vote of fewer than 47 of the members elected.

(House Rule 63)

63. Motion on Different Subject. No motion or other legislative measure on a subject different from that under consideration shall be admitted under color of amendment.

(House Rule 64)

64. Division of Question. If the question under consideration contains several points, any member may have the question divided. On a motion to strike out and insert, it is not in order to move for a division of the question. The rejection of a motion to strike out and insert one proposition does not prevent a motion to strike out and insert a different proposition.

(House Rule 65)

- 65. Reconsideration.
- (a) A member who voted on the prevailing side of a record vote on a legislative measure still within the control of the House may on the same or the following legislative day move to reconsider the vote. The motion to reconsider may be laid on the table without affecting the vote to which it refers. When the motion to reconsider is made during the last 3 days of April or any time thereafter during the regular session, or at any time during a veto or special session, any member may move that the vote on reconsideration be taken immediately. A question that requires the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected or more to carry requires a majority of those elected to reconsider.
- (b) A motion to reconsider a record vote on the adoption of an amendment to a bill may be made only on Second Reading.
- (c) If a motion to reconsider is made under this Rule and the motion is later tabled, the question shall not be further reconsidered. This subsection (c) may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.
- (d) When a motion to reconsider is made within the time prescribed by these Rules, the Clerk shall not allow the bill or other subject matter of the motion to pass out of the possession of the House until after the motion has been decided or withdrawn. Such a motion shall be deemed rejected if laid on the table.
- (e) A Representative who voted "present" or failed to vote on a question does not have the right to move for reconsideration.

(House Rule 66)

- 66. Motion to Adjourn.
- (a) A motion to adjourn is in order at any time, except when a prior motion to adjourn has been defeated and no intervening business has transpired.
 - (b) A motion to adjourn is neither debatable nor amendable.
- (c) The Clerk shall enter in the Journal the hour at which every motion to adjourn is made.

- (d) Unless the Presiding Officer otherwise orders, the standing hour to which the House adjourns is 12:00 noon, except on the last day of a week in which the House convenes in regular, veto, or special session, in which case the standing hour to which the House adjourns is 12:30 p.m.
- (e) A motion to adjourn for more than 3 days is not in order unless both chambers of the General Assembly have adopted a joint resolution permitting that adjournment. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Rules, any such resolution filed in the House or received from the Senate may be referred to the Rules Committee by the Presiding Officer or may be immediately considered and adopted by the House.

(House Rule 67)

- 67. Adoption and Amendment to or Suspension of Rules.
- (a) Adoption of Rules. At the commencement of a term, the House shall adopt new rules of organization and procedure by resolution setting forth those rules in their entirety. The resolution must be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected. These Rules of the House of Representatives are subject to revision or amendment only in accordance with this Rule.
- (b) Rules may be amended only by resolution. Any resolution to amend these Rules shall show the proposed changes in the existing rules by underscoring all new matter and by crossing out with a line all matter that is to be omitted or superseded.
- (c) Any resolution proposing to amend a House Rule or any Joint House-Senate Rule, upon initial reading by the Clerk, is automatically referred to the Rules Committee. Resolutions to amend the House Rules or any Joint House-Senate Rules may be initiated and sponsored by the Rules Committee and may be amended by the Rules Committee; those resolutions shall not be referred to a committee and may be immediately considered and adopted by the House. Those resolutions shall be assigned standard debate status, subject to Rule 52.
- (d) A resolution to amend the House Rules or any Joint House-Senate Rules that has been reported "do adopt" or "do adopt as amended" by a majority of those appointed to the Rules Committee requires the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected for adoption by the House. Any other resolution proposing to amend the House Rules or any Joint House-Senate Rules requires the affirmative vote of 71 of the members elected for adoption by the House.
- (e) No House Rule or any Joint House-Senate Rule may be suspended except by unanimous consent of the members present or upon a motion supported by the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected unless a higher number is required in the Rule sought to be suspended. A committee may not suspend any Rule.
 - (f) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 68)

68. Motion to Commit or Recommit. No motion to commit or recommit a legislative measure to committee, being decided in the negative, shall again be allowed on the same day, or at the same stage of the legislative measure.

(House Rule 69)

- 69. Effective Date.
- (a) A bill passed after May 31 of a calendar year shall not become effective prior to June 1 of the next calendar year unless an earlier effective date is specified in the bill and it is approved by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.
- (b) If a majority of those elected, but fewer than 71, vote affirmatively for a bill on Third Reading after May 31 and the bill specifies an effective date earlier than the following June 1, the bill has not passed, but the Principal Sponsor has the right to have the bill automatically reconsidered and returned to the order of Second Reading for an amendment to remove the earlier effective date. The amendment, if offered and referred to the House by a committee, shall be reproduced and placed on the desks of the members, in the same manner as provided for bills under Rule 39, before the bill is taken up again on the order of Third Reading.

(House Rule 70)

70. Home Rule. No bill denies or limits any power or function of a home rule unit under paragraph (g), (h), (i), (j), or (k) of Sec. 6 of Article VII of the Constitution unless there is specific language limiting or denying the power or function and the language specifically sets forth in what manner and to what extent it is a denial or limitation of the power or function of a home rule unit. If a majority of those elected, but fewer than 71, vote affirmatively for a bill on Third Reading that requires the affirmative vote of 71 members elected to deny or limit a power of a home rule unit, the bill has not passed, but the Principal Sponsor has the right to have the bill automatically reconsidered and returned to the order of Second Reading for an amendment to remove those effects of the bill.

ARTICLE VII (RESERVED)

(House Rule 71)

71. (Blank.)

ARTICLE VIII JOINT ACTION

(House Rule 72)

- 72. Concurring in or Receding from Amendments.
- (a) If a bill or resolution is received back in the House with one or more amendments added by the Senate, it is in order for the Principal Sponsor to present a motion "to concur" or "not to concur and to ask the Senate to recede" with respect to each, several, or all of those amendments, subject to Rules 18 and 75. A motion to concur shall be by record vote and shall be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of those

elected, subject to Rule 69. Any member may demand a separate vote or a separate record vote, as applicable, on any of those amendments.

- (b) When the Senate has refused to concur in one or more amendments added to a bill or resolution by the House and has returned the bill or resolution to the House with a message requesting the House to recede from one or more of its amendments, it is in order for the Principal Sponsor to present a motion "to recede" from the House amendments or "not to recede and to request a conference", subject to Rules 18 and 75. A motion to recede shall be by record vote and shall be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of those elected, subject to Rule 69. Any member may demand a separate vote or a separate record vote, as applicable, on any of those amendments.
- (c) Motions authorized by this Rule are renewable and may be reconsidered, provided that no such motion may be voted on more than twice by the House.

(House Rule 73)

- 73. Conference Committees.
- (a) A disagreement between the House and Senate exists with respect to any bill or resolution in the following situations:
 - (1) when the Senate refuses to recede from the adoption of any amendment, after the House has previously refused to concur in the amendment; or
 - (2) when the House refuses to recede from the adoption of any amendment, after the Senate has previously refused to concur in the amendment.

In those cases of disagreement between the House and Senate, the House may request a conference. When such a request is made, both chambers of the General Assembly shall appoint members to a committee to confer on the subject of the bill or resolution giving rise to the disagreement. The combined membership of the 2 chambers appointed for that purpose is the conference committee.

- (b) The conference committee shall consist of 5 members from each chamber of the General Assembly. The number of majority caucus members from each chamber shall be one more than the number of minority caucus members from each chamber.
- (c) Each conference committee shall be comprised of 5 members of the House, 3 appointed by the Speaker and 2 appointed by the Minority Leader. No conference committee report may be filed with the Clerk until a majority of the House conferees has been appointed.

(House Rule 74)

- 74. Conference Committee Reports.
- (a) No subject matter shall be included in any conference committee report on any bill unless that subject matter directly relates to the matters of difference between the House and Senate that have been referred to the conference committee unless the Rules Committee, by a majority vote of the members appointed, determines that the proposed subject matter is of an emergency nature, is of substantial importance to the operation of government, or is in the best interests of Illinois.

- (b) No conference committee report shall be received by the Clerk or acted upon by the House unless it has been signed by at least 6 conferees. The report shall be signed in duplicate. One of the reports shall be filed with the Secretary of the Senate and one with the Clerk. The report shall contain the agreements reached by the committee.
- (c) If the conference committee determines that it is unable to reach agreement, the committee shall so report to each chamber of the General Assembly and request appointment of a second conference committee. If there is agreement, the committee shall so report to each chamber.
- (d) No conference committee report shall be adopted by the House except on a record vote of a majority of those elected, subject to Rule 69.

(House Rule 75)

- 75. House Consideration of Joint Action.
- (a) No joint action motion for final action or conference committee report may be considered by the House unless it has first been referred to the House by the Rules Committee or a standing committee or special committee in accordance with Rule 18, or unless the joint action motion or conference committee report has been discharged from the Rules Committee under Rule 18. Joint action motions for final action and conference committee reports referred to a standing committee or special committee by the Rules Committee may not be discharged from the standing committee or special committee. This subsection (a) may be suspended by unanimous consent.
- (b) No conference committee report may be considered by the House unless it has been reproduced and distributed as provided in Rule 39, for one full day during the period beginning with the convening of the House on the 2nd Wednesday of January each year and ending on the 30th day prior to the scheduled adjournment of the regular session established each year by the Speaker pursuant to Rule 9(a), and for one full hour on any other day.
- (c) Before any conference committee report on an appropriation bill is considered by the House, the conference committee report shall first be the subject of a public hearing by a standing Appropriations Committee or a special committee (the conference committee report need not be referred to an Appropriations Committee or special committee, but instead may remain before the Rules Committee or the House, as the case may be). The hearing shall be held pursuant to not less than one hour advance notice by announcement on the House floor, or one day advance notice by posting on the House bulletin board. An Appropriations Committee or special committee shall not issue any report with respect to the conference committee report following the hearing.
- (d) Any House Bill amended in the Senate and returned to the House for concurrence in the Senate amendment shall lie upon the desk of the Clerk for not less than one hour before being further considered.
- (e) No House Bill that is returned to the House with Senate amendments may be called except by the Principal Sponsor, or by a chief co-sponsor with the consent of the Principal Sponsor. This subsection may not be suspended.

(f) Except as otherwise provided in Rule 74, the report of a conference committee on a non-appropriation bill or resolution shall be confined to the subject of the bill or resolution referred to the conference committee. The report of a conference committee on an appropriation bill shall be confined to the subject of appropriations.

(House Rule 76)

- 76. Action on Conference Committee Reports.
- (a) Each chamber of the General Assembly shall inform the other by message of any action taken with respect to a conference committee report. Copies of all papers necessary for a complete understanding of the action shall accompany the message. The original bill or resolution shall remain in the chamber of origin.
- (b) No conference committee report may be called except by the Principal Sponsor of the bill for which the conference committee was appointed. A chief co-sponsor may call a conference committee report with the consent of the Principal Sponsor. This subsection may not be suspended.
- (c) If either chamber refuses to adopt the report of the conference committee, the report of the conference committee is laid on the table, or the first conference committee is unable to reach agreement, either chamber may request a second conference committee. When such a request is made, each chamber shall again appoint a conference committee. If either chamber refuses to adopt the report of a second conference committee, the 2 chambers shall have adhered to their disagreement, and the bill or resolution is lost.

ARTICLE IX VETOES

(House Rule 77)

77. Recording of Vetoes. Upon the receipt by the House of any bill returned by the Governor under any of the provisions of Article IV, Sec. 9 of the Constitution, the Clerk shall enter the objections of the Governor on the Journal, and shall reproduce and distribute copies of all veto messages, together with copies of the vetoed bill or item, as provided in Rule 39.

(House Rule 78)

- 78. Amendatory Vetoes.
- (a) The Principal Sponsor of a bill that has been passed by the General Assembly may request the Clerk to notify the Governor that the Principal Sponsor wishes to be consulted by the Governor or his or her designee before the Governor returns the bill together with specific recommendations for change under subsection (e) of Section 9 of Article IV of the Illinois Constitution.
- (b) Any bill returned by the Governor together with specific recommendations for change under subsection (e) of Section 9 of Article IV of the Illinois Constitution shall

automatically be placed on the Daily Calendar on the order of amendatory vetoes, and shall be considered as provided in this Rule.

- (c) The Governor's specific recommendations for change with respect to a bill returned under subsection (e) of Section 9 of Article IV of the Illinois Constitution shall be limited to addressing the Governor's objections to portions of a bill the general merit of which the Governor recognizes and shall not alter the fundamental purpose or legislative scheme set forth in the bill as passed.
- (d) Any motion to accept the Governor's specific recommendations for change shall be automatically referred to the Rules Committee. The Rules Committee shall examine the Governor's specific recommendations for change and determine by a majority of the members appointed whether those recommendations comply with the standard set forth in subsection (c). Any motion to accept specific recommendations for change that the Rules Committee determines are in compliance with subsection (c) of this Rule shall be subject to action by the Rules Committee in the same manner as floor amendments, joint action motions, conference committee reports and motions to table committee amendments under Rule 18(e).
- (e) Any motion to override the Governor's specific recommendations for change shall not be referred to a committee and may be immediately considered and adopted by the House subject to Rule 80(d).
 - (f) This rule may not be suspended.

(House Rule 79)

79. Motions to Consider Vetoes. For purposes of this Article, the term "motions" means motions to accept or override a veto of the Governor. Motions with respect to bills returned by the Governor may be made by the Principal Sponsor, the committee Chairperson in the case of a committee-sponsored bill, or if Co-Chairpersons have been appointed, by the Co-Chairperson of the majority caucus in the case of special committee-sponsored bills. Motions shall be filed in writing with the Clerk. Any motion to override a veto of the Governor shall not be referred to a committee and may be immediately considered and adopted by the House subject to Rule 80. All motions shall be assigned standard debate status, subject to Rule 52, are renewable, and may be reconsidered, provided that no motion may be voted on more than twice by the House.

(House Rule 80)

α	\sim .	1	CNE	
XII	Onci	deration	of Motions	3

	(a) The	vote to	override	e a veto	of a t	oill ve	toed in	its e	ntirety s	hall l	be by	y reco	rd v	ote
and	shall be	entered	on the .	Journal.	The i	form (of moti	ion w	ith resp	ect to	the	se bil	ls sl	hall
be:	"I move	e that		_ Bill		_ do	pass,	notw	vithstand	ling	the	veto	of	the
Gov	ernor."													

(b)	The	vote	to	override	an	item	veto	shall	be	by	record	vote	as to	each	item
separate	ly and	l shall	be	entered o	n tl	ne Jou	ırnal.	The fo	orm	of	motion	with r	espec	to an	item
shall be	: "I n	nove	that	the item	on	page		_, line		,	of	_ Bil	l	_ do	pass,
notwiths	standi	ng the	ite	m veto of	the	Gove	ernor.	"							

(c) The vote to override an item reduction veto and restore an item that has been
reduced shall be by record vote as to each item separately and shall be entered on the
Journal. The form of motion with respect to an item shall be: "I move that the item on
page, line, of Bill be restored, notwithstanding the item reduction
of the Governor."

- (d) A bill returned together with specific recommendations of the Governor may be acted upon, by record vote, in either of the following manners:
 - (1) By a motion to accept the specific recommendations of the Governor. The form of motion shall be: "I move to accept the specific recommendations of the Governor as to _____ Bill _____ in manner and form as follows: (inserting herein the language deemed necessary to effectuate the specific recommendations)."; or
 - (2) By considering the bill as a vetoed bill and overriding the recommendation and passing the bill in its original form. The form of motion shall be: "I move that _____ Bill _____ do pass, notwithstanding the specific recommendations of the Governor."

(House Rule 81)

81. Vetoed Bills Considered in Entirety. If a bill is returned by the Governor containing more than one item veto, reduction veto, specific recommendation for change, or combination of them, the bill shall be acted upon in its entirety before the bill is released from the custody of the House.

(House Rule 82)

82. Disposition of Vetoes. When a bill or item has received the affirmative vote of the number of members elected necessary under the Constitution, the Presiding Officer shall declare that the bill or item has been passed or restored over the veto of the Governor, or that the specific recommendations for change have been approved, as the case may be. The bill shall then be attested to by the Clerk who shall note thereon the day the bill passed. The bill and the objections of the Governor shall then be immediately delivered to the Senate. When specific recommendations have been accepted, then the accepting language shall be attached to the original bill, and the bill shall be delivered to the Senate.

ARTICLE X ELECTION CONTESTS AND QUALIFICATIONS CHALLENGES

(House Rule 83)

- 83. Election Contests and Qualifications Challenges.
- (a) An election contest places in issue only the validity of the results of an election of a member to the House in a representative district. An election contest may result only in a determination of which candidate in that election was properly elected to the House and shall be seated.

- (b) A qualifications challenge places in issue only the qualifications of an incumbent member of the House under the Constitution, or the legality of an appointment of a person as a member of the House to fill a vacancy. A qualifications challenge may result only in a determination of whether a member of the House is properly seated.
- (c) Election contests and qualifications challenges shall be brought and conducted as provided in these Rules.
- (d) If an election contest or qualifications challenge is filed with the Clerk, the Speaker shall create an Election Contest or Qualifications Challenge Committee, as the case may be, within 3 legislative days by filing a notice with the Clerk. The creation of any committee under this Rule shall be governed by Rule 10. The election contest or qualifications challenge shall be automatically referred to the Election Contest or Qualifications Challenge Committee, as the case may be. For purposes of this Article, the term "committee" means only the Election Contest or Qualifications Challenge Committees created under this Rule. This subsection may not be suspended.
- (e) The committee may adopt rules to govern election contests and qualifications challenges, but those committee rules must be consistent with these Rules, must be filed with the Clerk, and must be made available to all parties and to the public. Any committee rule shall be subject to amendment, suspension, or repeal by House resolution.

(House Rule 84)

- 84. Initiating Election Contests.
- (a) Election contests may be brought only by a registered voter of the representative district or by a member of the House.
- (b) Election contests may be brought only by the procedures and within the time limits established by the Election Code. Notice of intention to contest shall be served on the person certified as elected to the House from the representative district within the time limits established by the Election Code. The requirements of this subsection apply to a member of the House appointed to fill a vacancy the same as if that member had been elected to the House.
- (c) Within 10 days after the convening of the House in January following the general election contested, each contestant shall file with the Clerk a petition of election contest and shall serve the petition on the incumbent member of the House from the representative district. A petition of election contest shall allege the contestant's qualifications to bring the contest and to serve as a member of the House, that he or she believes that a mistake or fraud has been committed in specified precincts in the counting, return, or canvass of the votes, or that there was some other specified irregularity in the conduct of the election in specified precincts. A petition of election contest shall contain a prayer specifying the relief requested and the precincts in which a recount or other inquiry is desired. A petition of election contest shall be verified by affidavit swearing to the truth of the allegations or based upon information and belief, and shall be accompanied by proof of service on all respondents.

- (d) A notice of intent to contest may not be amended to cure a defect under the statutory requirements. A petition of election contest, if filed and served after the notice of intention to contest, may not raise points not expressed in the notice.
- (e) The incumbent member of the House from the representative district is a necessary party to the initiation of an election contest.

(House Rule 85)

- 85. Initiating Qualifications Challenges.
- (a) Qualifications challenges may be brought only by a registered voter of the representative district of the representative challenged or by a member of the House.
- (b) Qualifications challenges must be brought within 90 days after the day the challenged member takes his or her oath of office as a member of the House, or within 90 days after the day the petitioner first learns of the information on which the challenge is based, whichever occurs later.
- (c) A qualifications challenge shall be brought by filing a petition of qualifications challenge with the Clerk, and by serving a copy of the petition on the respondent member of the House. The petition must be accompanied by proof of personal service upon the respondent member and must be verified by affidavit swearing to the truth of the allegations or based upon information and belief. A petition of qualifications challenge shall set forth the grounds on which the respondent member is alleged to be constitutionally unqualified, or on which his or her appointment to the House is claimed to be legally improper, the qualifications of the petitioner to bring the challenge, and a prayer for relief.

(House Rule 86)

- 86. Contests and Challenges; Due Process.
- (a) Election contests and challenges shall be heard and determined as expeditiously as possible under adversary procedures wherein each party to the proceedings has a reasonable opportunity to present his or her claim, to present any defense and arguments, and to respond to those of his or her opponents. All parties may be represented by counsel.
- (b) Election contests and qualifications challenges shall be heard and determined in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Election Code and other Illinois statutes, the Illinois Constitution, and the United States Constitution. Judicial decisions that bear on a point of law in a contest or challenge shall be admissible in the arguments of the parties and the deliberations and decisions of the committee. Judicial decisions applicable to a point of law or to a fact situation to the committee shall be given weight as precedent.
- (c) In addition to notice of meetings required under these Rules, the committee and any subcommittee shall give notice to all parties reasonably in advance of each meeting or other proceeding. The committee shall also give notice of all rules, timetables, or deadlines adopted by the committee. Notice under this subsection shall be in writing and shall be given either personally with receipt, or by certified mail (return receipt requested)

addressed to the party at his or her place of residence, and to his or her attorney of record at the attorney's office if so requested by the party.

(House Rule 87)

- 87. Committee Proceedings and Powers in Contests and Challenges.
- (a) All proceedings of the committee and any subcommittees concerning election contests and qualifications challenges shall be transcribed by a certified court reporter. Copies of the transcript shall be made available to the members of the committee and to the parties.
- (b) The committee may dismiss an election contest or qualifications challenge, or may determine to proceed to a recount or other inquiry. The committee may limit the issues to be determined in a contest or challenge, except that when a recount is conducted in an election contest, any precinct timely requested by any party to be recounted shall be recounted by the committee.
- (c) In conducting inquiries, investigations, and recounts in election contests and qualifications challenges, the committee has the power to send for and compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of books, papers, ballots, documents, and records by subpoena signed by the Chairperson of the committee as provided by law and subject to Rule 4(c)(9). In conducting proceedings in election contests and qualifications challenges, the Chairperson of the committee and the Chairperson of any subcommittee may administer oaths to witnesses, as provided by law, and for this purpose a subcommittee is deemed to be a committee of the House.
- (d) The committee may issue commissions by its Chairperson to any officer authorized to take depositions of any necessary witnesses as may be permitted by law. In recounting the ballots in any election contest, however, no person other than a member of the committee shall handle any ballots, tally sheets, or other election materials without consent of the committee or subcommittee. The responsibility for the actual recounting of ballots may not be delegated.
- (e) The committee shall maintain an accurate and complete record of proceedings in every election contest and qualifications challenge. That record shall include all notices and pleadings, the transcripts and roll call votes, all reports and dissents, and all documents that were admitted into the proceeding. The committee shall file the record with the Clerk of the House upon the adoption of its final report. The record shall then be available for examination in the Clerk's office.
- (f) With the approval of the Speaker, the committee may employ clerks, stenographers, court reporters, professional staff, and messengers.

(House Rule 88)

- 88. Adoption of Reports in Contests and Challenges.
- (a) All final decisions of the committee regarding an election contest or qualification challenge shall be approved by a majority of the members appointed to the committee and reported in writing to the House. Reports shall include a specific recommendation to the House as to the disposition of the contest or challenge. Final reports following full inquiry

on the merits of a contest or challenge shall contain findings of fact and, when necessary, conclusions of law.

- (b) Any member of the committee may file a dissent from a report of the committee, a minority report, or a special concurrence with the majority report or with any minority report.
- (c) A subcommittee shall report to the committee in writing in the same form as required for the committee report. Subcommittee members may file dissents, reports, and special concurrences.
- (d) Reports shall not be adopted by the committee or a subcommittee until a hearing has been held thereon, with notice to all parties and a reasonable opportunity to examine and respond to a proposed majority report.
- (e) Reports of the committee shall be filed with the Clerk, reproduced, and distributed, along with any dissents, minority reports, or special concurrences, as provided in Rule 39. The report shall be listed on the calendar under the heading "Report of Election Contest" or "Report of Qualifications Challenge". The report shall be carried on the Daily Calendar for 2 legislative days before any action by the House.
- (f) The House shall adopt the majority report or a minority report in an election contest or qualifications challenge or shall refuse to adopt any report filed and re-refer the contest or challenge to the committee for further proceedings or for a modified report. A report that has the effect of unseating an incumbent member of the House shall be adopted only by the affirmative vote of 60 members elected.
- (g) Each party to a contest or challenge shall file with the Clerk of the committee within 10 days after the filing of the final report a detailed statement of attorney's fees and expenses incurred by that party in connection with the case. The committee shall make recommendations to the House concerning reimbursement of attorney's fees and the expenses of the parties. The recommendation shall not exceed a sum that is reasonable, just, and proper.

ARTICLE XI DISCIPLINE AND PROTEST

(House Rule 89)

- 89. Disorderly Behavior.
- (a) In accordance with Article IV, Sec. 6(d) of the Constitution, the House may punish any of its members for disorderly behavior and, with the concurrence of two-thirds of the members elected, expel a member (but not for a second time for the same offense). The reason for expulsion shall be entered upon the Journal with the names and votes of those members voting on the question.
- (b) In accordance with Article IV, Sec. 6(d) of the Constitution, the House during its session may punish by imprisonment any person, not a member, guilty of disrespect to the House by disorderly or contemptuous behavior in its presence. That imprisonment shall not extend beyond 24 hours at one time unless the person persists in disorderly or contemptuous behavior.

(House Rule 90)

90. Protest. Any 2 members have the right to dissent and protest, in respectful language, against any act or resolution that they may think injurious to the public or to any individual, and have the reason of their protest entered upon the Journal. When by motion a majority of members determines that the language of a protest is not respectful, the protest shall be referred back to the protesting members.

ARTICLE XII DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS

(House Rule 91)

- 91. Special Investigating Committee.
- (a) Disciplinary proceedings may be commenced by filing with the Speaker and the Minority Leader a petition, signed by 3 or more members of the House, for a special investigating committee. The petition shall contain the alleged charge or charges that, if true, may subject the member named in the petition to disciplinary action by the House and may include any other factual information that supports the charge or charges.
- (b) Upon filing the petition, a special investigating committee consisting of 6 members shall be created. The Speaker shall appoint 3 members from the majority caucus and the Minority Leader shall appoint 3 members from the minority caucus. The Speaker shall appoint the Chairperson from among the 6 members. Members signing the petition may not be appointed to the special investigating committee. The contents of a petition for a special investigating committee shall be confidential until the appointment of all members except as to the member named, the members signing it, the Speaker, the Minority Leader, and the members of a special investigating committee.
- (c) The Chairperson shall give reasonable notice of all meetings to the member named in the petition and to the public. All meetings of the special investigating committee shall be open to the public, unless, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 (c) of the Illinois Constitution, the House votes by the affirmative vote of 79 members to hold proceedings in executive session. The Clerk shall keep an audio recording and transcripts of all meetings.
- (d) The member named in the petition has the right to counsel during all meetings of the special investigating committee.
- (e) The Chairperson may establish procedural rules (subject to the approval of the Speaker). The Committee may, in the discretion of the Chairperson, administer oaths and compel by subpoena (subject to Rules 4 (c) (9)) any person to appear and give testimony as a witness or produce papers, documents, or other materials relevant to the charge or charges.
 - (f) This Rule may be suspended only by unanimous consent.

(House Rule 92)

- 92. Investigation.
- (a) At the initial meeting of the special investigating committee, the Chairperson shall enter the petition into the record.
- (b) The special investigating committee shall conduct a thorough investigation of all charges alleged in the petition. The special investigating committee shall meet as often as necessary and consider any information or testimony it deems relevant to the charges alleged in the petition, regardless of whether such information was contained in the petition or is discovered through subsequent investigation.
- (c) The special investigating committee shall give the member named in the petition an opportunity to be present at all meetings and to testify or otherwise present any relevant information.
- (d) The special investigating committee shall determine if reasonable grounds exist to authorize charges against the member named in the petition that may result in disciplinary action by the House. The special investigating committee shall vote on each charge alleged in the petition by record vote. A motion to authorize a charge requires the affirmative vote of a majority of those appointed.
- (e) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 93)

- 93. Report of the Special Investigating Committee.
- (a) The special investigating committee shall file with the Clerk a written report that includes, at a minimum, a summary of each charge alleged in the petition, the vote on each charge alleged in the petition, and the reasons the committee did or did not authorize each charge against the member. Any member of the special investigating committee may include a supplemental statement in the report, either concurring with or dissenting from all or part of the report, or explaining a reason for his or her vote on a charge. The report shall be signed by all of the members of the special investigating committee, regardless of their original vote in the committee proceedings on whether to authorize charges.
- (b) If a majority of those appointed determines that reasonable grounds exist to authorize a charge or charges, then for each authorized charge the report shall include a statement of the authorized charge and any factual information supporting that charge. Within the report, the special investigating committee shall appoint 2 members of the House, one from the majority caucus and one from the minority caucus, who are not members of the special investigating committee and did not sign the petition, to be managers for the House at the hearing on the authorized charge or charges.
 - (c) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 94)

- 94. Select Committee on Discipline.
- (a) If a special investigating committee authorizes charges against any member of the House, the Speaker and the Minority Leader shall appoint a select committee on

discipline to hear and determine those charges. The select committee shall consist of 12 members of the House, 6 of whom shall be appointed by the Speaker from the majority caucus and 6 of whom shall be appointed by the Minority Leader from the minority caucus. The Speaker shall appoint a Chairperson from among the 12 members. No member who signed the petition or served on the special investigating committee may be appointed to the select committee.

- (b) All appointments to a select committee shall be completed and the select committee shall convene within 30 days after the filing of a report issued by the special investigating committee.
- (c) The Chairperson shall give reasonable notice of all meetings to the member named in the petition and to the public. All meetings of the select committee shall be open to the public, unless, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 (c) of the Illinois Constitution, the House votes by the affirmative vote of 79 members to hold proceedings in executive session. The Clerk shall keep an audio recording and transcript of all meetings.
- (d) The Chairperson may establish procedural rules (subject to the approval of the Speaker). The select committee may, at the discretion of the Chairperson, administer oaths and compel by subpoena (subject to Rule 4 (c) (9)) any person to appear and give testimony as a witness or produce papers, documents, or other materials relevant to the charge or charges.
 - (e) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 79 members elected.

(House Rule 95)

- 95. Hearings on Disciplinary Charges.
- (a) Proceedings before the select committee shall be adversarial in form, with the managers for the House presenting the case for disciplinary action. The member subject to charges has the right to counsel during all hearings of the select committee.
 - (b) Stipulations of fact shall be encouraged by the select committee.

(House Rule 96)

- 96. Report of the Select Committee on Discipline.
- (a) The select committee shall vote on each charge by record vote. For each charge the select committee shall vote on the question, "Is the Member at fault on this charge?" If a majority of the members appointed vote in the affirmative, the member shall be found at fault on that charge. If less than a majority of the members appointed vote in the affirmative, it shall be reported that there is insufficient evidence to find the member at fault on that charge.
- (b) If the select committee finds the member at fault on any charge, the committee shall adopt a recommendation for disciplinary action. The committee may recommend a reprimand, a censure, expulsion from the House, or that no penalty be invoked. The recommendation on disciplinary action requires an affirmative vote of the majority of the members appointed. If a majority of the members appointed cannot, by record vote, agree on a penalty, it shall report a recommendation that no penalty be invoked.

- (c) The select committee shall file a report of its findings on each charge. The report shall include, at a minimum, the vote of the committee on each charge, the reasons for each conclusion, and any recommendation as to a penalty for a finding of fault on a charge. Any member of the select committee may include a supplemental statement in the report, either concurring with or dissenting from all or part of the report, or explaining a reason for his or her vote on a charge.
- (d) If the select committee finds the member at fault on any charge, the select committee shall file a resolution that includes its findings, the charge, and the recommend penalty for that charge. Separate resolutions must be filed for each charge.
 - (e) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected.

(House Rule 97)

- 97. House Action on the Report of the Select Committee on Discipline.
- (a) The report of a select committee and any accompanying resolution shall be filed with the Clerk and reproduced and distributed as provided in Rule 39. The report and any accompanying resolutions shall be placed on the calendar under the heading "Report and Resolutions of Select Committee on Discipline". The report and resolutions shall be carried on the Daily Calendar for 2 legislative days before any action by the House.
- (b) The House shall take action by a record vote on each resolution. The House may amend a resolution for disciplinary action to decrease the recommended penalty by a record vote of 60 members elected.
- (c) A resolution finding a member at fault regarding a charge may be adopted only by the affirmative vote of 71 members elected, except that a resolution the effect of which is to expel a member may be adopted only by the affirmative vote of 79 members elected.
- (d) This Rule may be suspended only by the affirmative vote of 79 members elected, except that paragraph (c) may not be suspended.

ARTICLE XIII FORCE AND EFFECT

(House Rule 98)

98. Applicability. The meetings and actions of the House, including all of its committees, are governed by these House Rules.

(House Rule 99)

99. Parliamentary Authority. The rules of parliamentary practice appearing in the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised govern the House in all cases to which they apply so long as they are not inconsistent with these Rules.

(House Rule 100)

100. Certification by Speaker. With respect to each bill that is certified by the Speaker in accordance with Article IV, Sec. 8(d) of the Constitution, there is an irrebuttable presumption that the procedural requirements for passage have been met.

(House Rule 101)

101. Effective Date. These rules are in full force and effect upon their adoption, and shall remain in full force and effect except as amended in accordance with these Rules, or until superseded by new rules adopted as part of the organization of a newly-constituted General Assembly at the commencement of a term.

ARTICLE XIV DEFINITIONS

(House Rule 102)

102. Definitions. As used in these Rules, terms have the meanings ascribed to them as follows, unless the context clearly requires a different meaning:

- (1) Chairperson. "Chairperson" means that Representative designated by the Speaker to serve as chair of a committee.
- (2) Co-Chairperson. "Co-Chairperson" means a Representative designated by the Speaker to serve as co-chair of a standing or special committee.
- (3) Clerk. "Clerk" means the elected Clerk of the House.
- (4) Committee. "Committee" means a committee of the House and includes a standing committee, a special committee, any subcommittee of a committee, the Rules Committee, committees created under Article X and Article XII of these Rules, and a Committee of the Whole. "Committee" does not mean a conference committee, and the procedural and notice requirements applicable to committees do not apply to conference committees.
- (5) Constitution. "Constitution" means the Constitution of the State of Illinois.
- (6) General Assembly. "General Assembly" means the current General Assembly of the State of Illinois.
- (7) House. "House" means the House of Representatives of the General Assembly.
- (8) Joint Action Motions. "Joint action motions" means the following motions before the House: (i) to concur in a Senate amendment, (ii) to non-concur in a Senate amendment and ask the Senate to recede, (iii) to recede from a House amendment, (iv) to not recede from a House amendment and request that a conference committee be appointed, (v) to adopt a conference committee report, or (vi) to refuse to adopt a conference committee report and request appointment of a second conference committee.

- (9) Legislative Digest. "Legislative Digest" means the Legislative Synopsis and Digest that is prepared by the Legislative Reference Bureau of the General Assembly.
- (10) Legislative Measures. "Legislative measures" means all matters brought before the House for consideration, whether originated in the House or Senate, and includes bills, amendments, resolutions, conference committee reports, motions, messages, notices, and Executive Orders from the executive branch.
- (11) Majority. "Majority" means a majority of those members present and voting on a question. Unless otherwise specified with respect to a particular House Rule, for purposes of determining the number of members present and voting on a question, a "present" vote shall not be counted.
- (12) Majority Caucus. "Majority caucus" means that group of Representatives from the numerically strongest political party in the House.
- (13) Majority of those Appointed. "Majority of those appointed" means a majority of the total number of Representatives authorized under these Rules to be appointed to a committee.
- (14) Majority of those Elected. "Majority of those elected" means a majority of the total number of Representatives entitled to be elected to the House, regardless of the number of elected or appointed Representatives actually serving in office. So long as 118 Representatives are entitled to be elected to the House, "majority of those elected" means 60 affirmative votes; 71 affirmative votes means three-fifths of the members elected; and 79 affirmative votes means two-thirds of the members elected.
- (15) Member. "Member" means a Representative. Where the context so requires, "member" may also mean a Senator of the Illinois Senate.
- (16) Members Appointed. "Members appointed" means the total number of Representatives authorized under these Rules to be appointed to a committee.
- (17) Members Elected. "Members elected" means the 118 Representatives entitled to be elected to the House, regardless of the number of elected or appointed Representatives actually serving in office.
- (18) Minority Caucus. "Minority caucus" means that group of Representatives from the second numerically strongest political party in the House.
- (19) Minority Leader. "Minority Leader" means the Minority Leader of the House elected under Rule 2.
- (20) Minority Spokesperson. "Minority spokesperson" means that Representative designated by the Minority Leader to serve as the minority spokesperson of a committee.
- (21) Perfunctory Session. "Perfunctory session" means the convening of the House, pursuant to the scheduling of the Speaker, for purposes consistent with Rule 28.

- (22) Presiding Officer. "Presiding Officer" means that Representative serving as the presiding officer of the House, whether that Representative is the Speaker or another Representative designated by the Speaker under Rule 4.
- (23) Principal Sponsor. "Principal sponsor" means the first listed House sponsor of any legislative measure; with respect to a committee-sponsored bill or resolution, it means the Chairperson of the committee or the Co-Chairperson from the majority caucus.
- (24) Record Vote. "Record vote" means a vote by ayes and nays entered on the journal.
- (25) Representative. "Representative" means any duly elected or duly appointed Illinois State Representative, and means the same as "member".
- (26) Senate. "Senate" means the Senate of the General Assembly.
- (27) Speaker. "Speaker" means the Speaker of the House elected as provided in Rule 1.
- (28) Term. "Term" means the 2-year term of a General Assembly.
- (29) Vice-Chairperson. "Vice-Chairperson" means that Representative designated by the Speaker to serve as Vice-Chairperson of a committee.

HOUSE RULES NINETY-EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

Subject Rule Number
ABSENCES AND ABSENTEES Committees, temporary replacements 10(b) Excuses for absence 51(i) Length of adjournment 35
AMENDATORY VETOES, see VETOES
AMENDMENTS 40 Adoption 40(a) Committees, amendments in 18(f), 24(b), 40 Consent Calendar, amendments from floor prohibited 42(b) Filing of 18(e), 40(c), 40(d) Floor amendments 18(e), 24(b), 40(e), 58 Reproduction and distribution 40(a) Reconsideration 65(b) Rules, amendments to 18(e), 67 Tabling, see TABLING
APPEALING RULING OF THE CHAIR 57 Committee meetings 57(b) Floor session 57(a)
APPOINTMENTS Committee members, see COMMITTEES House members, subject to election contests and qualifications
APPROPRIATIONS Appropriations Committee, bills and amendments
ASSIGNMENT AND REASSIGNMENT Bills and resolutions
ASSISTANT CLERK, see CLERK
BILLS Appropriations, see APPROPRIATIONS Assignment and reassignment

Clerk to put on desks	6(b) (3)
Clerk to read by title	6(b) (10)
Committee bills	37(b)
Committee reports (see also COMMITTEES)	24
Effective dates	69
Emergency, deadline exemption	18(b)
Final passage (see also THIRD READING)	
First Reading and assignment to Rules	
Introduction	
Postpone Consideration (see also POSTPONED CONSIDERATION)	
Read by title on three days	
Reconsideration	
Removal from Consent Calendar	
Reproduction and Distribution	
Re-referrals to Rules	
Scheduling in committee	
Second Reading, see SECOND READING	==(, (-)
Senate sponsor	37(c)
Certification by Speaker	
Special Orders	
Sponsors, see SPONSORS	
Tabling (see also TABLING)	21(c), 60
Third Reading deadlines and exemptions	
Third Reading (see also THIRD READING)	
Vetoes (see also VETOES)	
CALENDAR	
Bills taken from the table	61(b)
Committee hearings, notices	. ,
Conference committee reports, length of time on Calendar	
Consent Calendar	
Daily Calendar	
Daily order of business	
Disciplinary report and resolutions	
Preparation by Clerk	
Special Orders	
•	` '
CENSURE	` ′
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION	48
CHAIRPERSON OF COMMITTEES, definition	
Appeals from ruling	
Appointment by Speaker	
Committee bills, floor manager to be appointed	
Committee records, reports, and recordings	22(c)
Decorum and order, preservation	10(c)

Duties	10(c), 22(c), (d)
Failure to call meetings	22(e)
Failure to set action on bill	22(e)
Special Committees	13(b)
Witnesses, oaths and subpoenae	87(c), 91(e), 94(d)
CHAMBER	
Access to House area	
Doorkeeper to ensure order and decorum	
General supervision, Speaker	
Literature not to be distributed on floor	\ /
Recognition of guests	, ,
Removal of disruptive persons	
Smoking prohibited	
Speaker to supervise order and decorum	4(c) (6), $51(g)$
CLERK OF THE HOUSE, definition	
Assistant Clerk	
Committee meetings, notice requirements	
Documents, reproduction and distribution	
Duties, generally	6
CO-CHAIRPERSON, definition	102(2)
COMMITTEES, definition	
Amendments (see also AMENDMENTS)	18(f), 24(b),40
Appointments	(/ / / / / / /
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Co-Chairperson and Spokesperson	
CHAIRPERSON OF COMMITTEES)4(c) (14), 10(c), 13(b),	
Conference committees (see also CONFERENCE COMMITTEES	
Discharge of committee	
Discipline, select committee on (see also DISCIPLINARY PROCE	EEDINGS)94
Executive reorganization orders (see also EXECUTIVE	
REORGANIZATION ORDERS)	
Meetings, calling	
Meetings, conduct	
Meetings, notice of	
Meetings, not to be concurrent with House session	
Meetings, rights of the public	
Members, appointment	
Of the Whole	
Posting Notices	
Posting requirements, Suspension of	
Procedures	
Quorum	
Reports	
Records	` '
Roll Call	10(c), 22(c) (3)

Second Reading, see SECOND READING	
Short Debate Status	22(h)
Smoking, prohibited at hearings	27
Special, Creation	10(a), 13
Standing, list	
Subcommittees, see also SUBCOMMITTEES	
Tabling Committee Amendments	
Vacancies	
Witnesses (see also WITNESSES)	22(c) (4), 23, 26
CONCURRENCE	
Senate amendments to House bills/concurring or receding	72, 75(d)
CONFERENCE COMMITTEES	73
Action on	
Committee Reports	
Consideration	
Postings, notice of	
Reports	
Rules, Conference Committees to	18(e), 75(c)
Voting on reports (final passages)	74(d), 76(c)
CONFIDENTIALITY	
Disciplinary proceedings before Special Investigating	
Committees	91
CONSIDERATION POSTPONED, see POSTPONED CONSIDER	RATION
CONSTITUTION, definition	102(5)
STATE CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS	46
FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT AND CONVE	NTIONS47
CONSTITUTIONAL REQUIREMENTS See THIRD READING	
CONTESTED ELECTIONS, see ELECTION CONTEST	
STANDING DAILY ORDER OF BUSINESS (see also ORDER O	F BUSINESS)31
DEADLINES	9
Re-referrals to Rules	
DEDATE	
Amendment Debate	52(a) (5)
Consent Calendar, no debate	
Division of question	
Extended Debate	
Decorum	. , , , ,
Previous question, debate on (see also MOTIONS)	
Short Debate	52(a) (1)

Special Orders, fair division of debate time	44(a)
Standard Debate	52(a) (2)
Transcription	
Unlimited Debate	. , , ,
Yielding time to another	` ´
DISCHARGE COMMITTEE	58
DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS	
Disorderly behavior	
Hearing on disciplinary charges	
House action on disciplinary reports	
Investigation	
Report and recommendations of select committee	
Report of special investigating committee	
Select committee on discipline	
Special investigating committee	91
DISSENT, entry in Journal	90
DOORKEEPER	
Duties	8, 30(b)
Election	
Speaker to supervise	4(c) (12)
EFFECTIVE DATES	69
ELECTION CONTESTS	
Generally	
Committee proceedings and powers	
Due process	
Initiation	
Referral to Election Contest or Qualifications Challenge Committee Reports, adoption of	
Qualification challenges	
ETHICS, see DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS	
EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION ORDERS	16(d)
EXECUTIVE SESSIONS	` ′
FLOOR PRIVILEGES	, , , , , , , ,
FREEDOM INFORMATION ACT	6(14)
GALLERIES, see CHAMBER	
GENERAL ASSEMBLY, definition	
HOME RULE, limiting	70
HOUSE, definition	102(7)

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS, see BILLS; DEADLINES

JOINT ACTION MOTION, definition	102(8)
Committee Reports	24(b)
House Consideration	75
Rules Committee, referred	18(e)
JOURNAL	
Approval, daily order of business	33
Clerk to keep and correct errors	
LAND CONVEYANCE APPRAISALS	41(b)
LEGISLATIVE DIGEST, definition	102(9)
LEGISLATIVE MEASURES, definition	102(10)
Reconsideration	
LITERATURE	
Distributing on House floor prohibited	51(h)
MAJORITY, definition	102(11)
Leadership-Appointments	. ,
Caucus	
Of those Appointed	. ,
Of those Elected	. ,
MEMBERS, definition	102(15)
Appointed, definition	* *
Elected, definition	
Representative, definition	
MINORITY LEADER, definition	2(a) 102(19)
Leadership-Appointments	
Caucus, definition	
Election	
Minority Leadership/Caucus staff, general supervision	
Powers and Duties, generally	
MINORITY SPOKESPERSON, definition	102(20)
MOTIONS	54
Adjourn	
Commit or recommit	
Different subject	
Discharge committee	
Division of question	
Postpone	
Precedence	
Presenting and possession	
Previous Question	
Reconsider	

Referred to Rules Table Committee Amendments	
Tabling, see TABLING	18(e), 24(b), 00(a)
Take from table	61
Veto, form	
Vote requirements, see "Table of Extraordinary Vote Requirements"	
NEWS MEDIA	
Access to House area	30(a)
NONCONCURRENCE	
Generally	72
NOTE REQUEST, QUICK TAKES	41
NOTICE	
Committee proceedings	
Election contests	
Resolutions, committee hearings	10(c)
Rules Committee	15(c)
Suspending Posting Requirements	25
OATHS	
Committees	23
OFFICERS OF THE HOUSE, see CLERK; DOORKEEPE	R; SPEAKER
ORDER AND DECORUM	51
Access to House Floor	
Debate	
Disturbance	
Doorkeeper access to House Chamber	
Literature not to be distributed on House floor	
Voting	
ORDER OF BUSINESS, standing	
Call of bills	
Changing	
Priority of business	
Special orders	
OVERRULING CHAIR, see APPEALING RULING OF CH	HAIR
PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE	00
Robert's Rules of Order	
PERFUNCTORY SESSION, definition	
Business conduct on	28(c)
PETITIONS	
Disciplinary proceedings	91(a)

Election contest	
Preliminary investigation	
Qualifications challenges	
POSTPONED CONSIDERATION 50, 54(a) (5), 55(a) (7),	55(b), (c), 62
PRESS, see NEWS MEDIA	
PRESIDING OFFICER, definition	102(22)
PREVIOUS QUESTION, see MOTIONS	
PROTEST	90
PUBLIC, RIGHTS OF	26
QUORUM	
In committees	32(b)
On floor	32(a)
Request to be shown	32(c)
RECOGNITION OF GUESTS	51(e)
RECORD VOTE, definition	102(24)
REPRESENTATIVE, definition	102(25)
REPRIMAND, see DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS	
RESOLUTIONS (see also BILLS for provisions applying to both)	
Generally	45
Adjournment over 3 days	
Committee Reports	
Consent Calendar, Resolutions needing 60 or more votes prohibited	
Constitutional amendments, State	
Constitutional amendments, Federal	
Disciplinary resolutions	
Joint Rules, resolutions about	
Referrals of resolution and Reorganization Orders	
Resolutions, prohibited on consent calendar	
	07(a), (b)
REVENUE Consent Calendar, revenue bills prohibited	42(a)
Consent Calendar, revenue oms promoted	42(8)
ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER	
Parliamentary authority	99
ROLL CALL	
Changing vote prohibited	
Committees, final vote not to be taken without approval of chief sponsor	
Committees, only two passage roll calls allowed	
Consent Calendar, single roll call for final passage	
Final passage of bills	50

Journal entry, see JOURNAL	
Record vote	50
Verification of Vote	56
RULES	
Adoption	67(a)
Amending	67(b)
Appeal	
Committee meetings, application of House Rules to	98
Discharge	
Effective date	
Robert's Rules of Order/Parliamentary Authority	
Suspending	67(e)
RULES COMMITTEE, generally	15
Amendments, floor	
Assignment of bills	
Conference Committee reports	
Discharge	18(g)
Emergency Bills	
Members appointment	
Posting Notice	
Referred and Re-referred	
Resolutions amending Rules	
Resolutions and Reorganization Orders	
Special Orders	
Sponsorship by	
Take from table	61
SAFETY IN HOUSE CHAMBER, see CHAMBER	
SCHEDULE, generally	9
SECOND READING	
Amendments may be offered	40
Consent Calendar	42(c)
SENATE, definition	102(26)
Bills in House, generally	37(c) (d)
Bills, deadlines	9(b)
Clerk to transmit and receive bills, documents, and messages to and from	
Concurrence in Senate amendments to House bills	72
Senate Amendments to House bills	2, 75(d)
SESSIONS OF THE HOUSE	28
Executive	
Perfunctory	
SHORT DEBATE STATUS	
Committee report	22(h)

Debate time on final passages	
Removal from Consent Calendar	42(f)
SMOKING PROHIBITED	
In House Chamber	30(a)
In Committees	27
SPEAKER, definition	102(27)
Appointments	3
Calling members to order	4(c) (2)
Duties, generally	4
Election of	1
Guests, introduction	51(e)
Order and Decorum, preserves	4(c) (6)
Order of business, can change	43(a)
Order, points of	4(c) (7)
Point of order or practice	4(c) (8)
Presides at House session	4 (c) (1)102 22)
Priority of business, decides	
Questions, puts to vote	
Sets special orders	
Temporary presiding officer, designates	
Writs, warrants, and subpoenas signed by	4(c) (9)
SPECIAL COMMITTEES	13
Amendments	40(e) (h)
SPECIAL ORDERS	44
SPONSORS	
Amendments offered in committee by principal sponsor	40(b)
Calling for committee final vote, Principal sponsor must approve	
Changing	
Committee bills, no individual sponsors	37(b)
Committee meeting and action, notice to sponsor	21(a) (3)
Co-sponsors	
Disciplinary proceedings, sponsor of resolution initiating	91(a)
Limit of five principal sponsors	37(a)
Names, appearance on bills	37(a)
Postponed consideration	62
Principal Sponsor, definition	37(a), 102(23)
Principal Sponsor, control of bills	
Senate bills, House sponsors of	37(c)
Special committee bills	37(b)
Tabling by sponsor in committee	21(c), 60(c)
Tabling by sponsor in House	60(b)
SURCOMMITTEES	14

SUBPOENAE	
Committees	
Signed by Speaker, attested by Clerk	4(c) (9)
SUSPENSION OF RULES	67(e)
Amendments	21(a) (2), 60(d) ed"24(a)
TELEVISION, see NEWS MEDIA	
,	
TERM, definition	102(28)
TESTIMONY, see WITNESSES	
THIRD READING	
Consent Calendar	42(c)
Deadlines	
Final passage	
Postponed Consideration	
Reconsideration	65
UNSEATING INCUMBENTS	
Election contest and qualifications challenge	88(f)
VACANCIES Appointment to fill vacancies, subject to election contests qualifications challenge	
VERIFICATION	56
VETOES	
Amendatory	
Considered in entirety	
Disposition of	
Form of motions	
Journal entry	
Return of vetoes	
VETOES REQUIRED, see "Table of Extraordinary Vote Re	equirements"
VICE-CHAIRPERSON, definition	102(29)
VOTING	49
Absent from session	
Reconsideration	
Record vote	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
Record vote, definition	
Roll call, see ROLL CALL	` ,
Verification, see ROLL CALL	
Voting for others members prohibited	49

WARRANTS	
Signed by Speaker, attested by Clerk	4(c) (9)
WITNESSES	
Committees	23
Committees, time limits for testimony	26(b)
Election Contest and Challenges	87(c)
WRITS	
Signed by the Speaker, attested by Clerk	4(c) 9
WRITTEN STATEMENTS	53
YIELDING OF TIME	52(e)

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES TABLE OF EXTRAORDINARY VOTE REQUIREMENTS

Under parliamentary law, legislative actions generally require a simple majority, i.e. a majority of those voting on the question. However, the Illinois Constitution of 1970 and the House Rules frequently impose requirements for greater or extraordinary majorities.

The most common extraordinary majorities are: (1) a "constitutional majority," a majority of members elected, which is 60 in the House; (2) three-fifths of the members elected, which is 71 in the House; and (3) two-thirds of the members elected, which is 79 in the House.

CONSTITUTIONAL REQUIREMENTS

1970 Constitution	Vote
Art. IV, Sec. 5(c)	
To close sessions, or meetings of committees or commissions, to the public	
Art. IV, Sec. 6(d) To expel a Member	79
Art. IV, Sec. 8(c) To pass a Bill	60
Art. IV, Sec. 10	71
To provide an early effective date in a Bill passed after May 31 of any year (where effective date is provided earlier than June 1)	
Art. IV, Sec. 9(c) To override a Veto	71
Art. IV, Sec. 9(e) To override an Amendatory Veto	71
Art. IV, Sec. 9(d)	71
To override an Item Veto	
Art. IV, Sec. 9(d)	
To restore a Reduced Item to its original amount	

1970 Constitution	Vote
Art. IV, Sec. 9(e) To accept Governor's Amendatory Veto recommendations (71 required for early effective date, when vote to accept occurs after May 31)	
Art. V, Sec. 11	
Art. VII, Sec. 6(g) To deny or limit home rule power or function not exercised by the State	71
Art. VII, Sec. 6(j) To limit home rule debt	71
Art. VIII, Sec. 3 To appoint Auditor General	71
Art. IX, Sec. 9 To incur state debt without referendum	71
Art. XIII, Sec. 8	*
Art. XIV, Sec. 1(a) To direct a referendum to call a State Constitutional Convention	71
Art. XIV, Sec. 2	71
Art. XIV, Sec. 4	71

LEGISLATIVE DIRECTORY

HOUSE	PHONE	ROOM	SENATE PHONE	ROOM		
Michael J. Madigan,			John Cullerton			
Speaker	782-5350	300	John Cullerton, President782-2728	327		
Timothy D. Mapes,	702 3330	500	David Gross	327		
Chief of Staff	782-6360	300	Chief of Staff782-3920	327		
Tom Cross,			Christine Radogno,			
Republican Leader	782-1331	316	Minority Leader782-7730	108		
Scott Reimers			Tim Nuding			
Chief of Staff	782-5104	316	Chief of Staff782-8184	108		
Timothy D. Mapes,			Tim Anderson,			
Chief Clerk	782-6360	300	Secretary of the Senate782-5715	401		
Bradley S. Bolin,	702 0222	420	Scott Kaiser,	401		
Assistant Chief Clerk	182-8223	420	Ass't. Sec. of the Senate 782-5715	401		
	LEGIS	LATIVE S	SERVICE UNITS			
Administrativ	e Rules, Jt.	Comm. On				
			ntability782-5320			
			782-7097			
			558-1561			
			782-7312			
			782-6625			
			782-6851			
LEGISLATI						
-						
Governor's C	Office					
Lt. Governor	's Office		558-3088			
Secretary of S	State					
Treasurer						
EMERGENCY NUMBERS						
Fire and Deli	20		9-911			
	*	*				
State Police		•••••	786-7110			

ILLINOIS HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 98TH GENERAL ASSEMBLY ROSTER

DHONE#	NAME	BOOM	DHONE#	NAME	DOOM
PHONE#	NAME	ROOM	PHONE#	NAME	ROOM
782-2855	Acevedo, Edward	109*	782-0424	Kosel, Renée	219-N
782-0480	Arroyo, Luis	274-S	782-1252	Lang, Lou	109*
782-5996	Beiser, Dan	269-S	782-8108	Leitch, David	314*
782-1448	Bellock, Patricia	215-N	782-6400	Lilly, Camille	270-S
558-1032	Berrios, Maria (Toni)	290-S	782-5350	Madigan, Michael	300*
782-0387	Bost, Mike	202-N	782-3316	Manley, Natalie	242A-W
782-1051	Bradley, John	259-S	782-8400	Martwick, Robert	282-S
782-1118	Brady, Dan	200-8N	782-0140	Mautino, Frank	300*
782-0053	Brauer, Rich	E-1	558-1012	Mayfield, Rita	256-W
782-8398	Brown, Adam	314*	782-4179	McAsey, Emily	237-E
782-1117	Burke, Daniel	233-E	782-8182	McAuliffe, Michael	218-N
782-0515	Burke, Kelly	246-W	782-1517	McSweeney, David	226-N
782-0455	Cabello, John	205A-N	782-6401	Meier, Charles	206-N
782-8088	Cassidy, Kelly	265-S	782-8117	Mell, Deborah	247-E
782-0066	Cavaletto, John	205-N	782-8163	Mitchell, Bill	634*
558-1002	Chapa LaVia, Linda	229-E	782-2023	Mitchell, Christian	240A-W
782-5981	Cloonen, Katherine	235-E	782-8032	Moffitt, Don	217-N
782-8158	Conroy, Deborah	244-W	782-8026	Morrison, Thomas	234-N
782-1018	Costello II, Jerry	200-5S	782-8007	Moylan, Martin	242-W
782-0347	Crespo, Fred	255-S	782-3725	Mussman, Michelle	277-S
782-1331	Cross, Tom	316*	558-1004	Nekritz, Elaine	245-E
782-8121	Currie, Barbara Flynn	300*	782-8151	Osmond, JoAnn	203-N
782-8198	D'Amico, John	279-S	782-5131	Phelps, Brandon	200-9S
782-1840	Davidsmeyer, C.D.	228-N	782-8037	Pihos, Sandra	225-N
782-0010	Davis, Monique	241-E	782-0044	Poe, Raymond	E-1
782-8197	Davis, William	254-W	782-0425	Pritchard, Robert	200-3N
782-1719	DeLuca, Anthony	271-S	782-4014	Reboletti, Dennis	204-N
782-0535	Demmer, Tom	222-N	782-2087	Reis, David	632*
782-0902	Drury, Scott	250-W	558-1007	Riley, Al	262-W
782-4535	Dunkin, Ken	278-S	558-1000	Rita, Robert	281-S
782-0494	Durkin, Jim	632*	782-8071	Rosenthal, Wayne	200-2N
782-8272	Evans Jr., Marcus	276-S	782-5997	Roth, Pam	201-N
782-8020	Farnham, Keith	249-E	782-8186	Sacia, Jim	210-N
782-8062	Feigenholtz, Sara	300*	782-6578	Sandack, Ron	200-1N
782-4194	Fine, Laura	231-E	524-0353	Scherer, Sue	E-2
782-4207	Flowers, Mary	251-E	782-5457	Schmitz, Timothy	224-N
782-5962	Ford, LaShawn	239-E 200-4N	782-6507	Senger, Darlene	211-N
782-1653	Fortner, Michael		782-0499	Sente, Carol	272-S
782-1717	Franks, Jack Gabel, Robyn	267-S 248-W	782-6476	Sims, Jr., Elgie	200-1S
782-8052	Gaber, Robyn Golar, Esther	268-S	782-3992	Smiddy, Mike	284-S
782-5971 782-3186	Gordon-Booth, Jehan	200-8S	782-8077 782-0221	Smith, Derrick Sommer, Keith	260-W 216-N
558-1040	Halbrook, Brad	200-83 213-N	782-0221	Sosnowski, Joe	210-N 227-N
782-0416	Hammond, Norine	209-N	782-0348	Soto, Cynthia	288-S
558-1039	Harms, Josh	208-N	782-3696	Sullivan, Jr., Ed	314*
782-3739	Harris, David	200-N 221-N	782-7050 782-7752	Tabares, Silvana	280-S
782-3835	Harris, Gregory	253-S	782-1702	Thapedi, Andre	273-S
782-1486	Hatcher, Kay	200-5N	782-8096	Tracy, Jil	207-N
782-4811	Hays, Chad	220-N	782-0432	Tryon, Mike	200-7N
782-8173	Hernandez, Lisa	286-S	782-8116	Turner, Arthur	238-W
782-0104	Hoffman, Jay	261-S	782-8110	Unes, Michael	232-N
782-8200	Hurley, Frances	252-W	782-5970	Verschoore, Patrick	263-S
558-1037	Ives, Jeanne	230-N	782-8090	Walsh, Jr., Lawrence	203-S 292-S
782-5951	Jackson, Eddie	200-7S	782-8090	Welch, Chris	266-S
558-1009	Jakobsson, Naomi	257-S	782-1664	Wheeler, Barbara	214-N
782-3167	Jefferson, Chuck	109*	782-2458	Williams, Ann	275-S
782-8087	Jones, Thaddeus	240-W	782-3374	Willis, Kathleen	264-S
782-8018	Kay, Dwight	223-N	782-7320	Yingling, Sam	258-W
782-8028	Kifowit, Stephanie	200-3S	782-5280	Zalewski, Michael	243-E
	,			,	

*Capitol 75

ILLINOIS STATE SENATE 98TH GENERAL ASSEMBLY ROSTER

PHONE#	NAME	ROOM	PHONE#	NAME	ROOM
782-8000	Althoff, Pamela	M103C*	782-0054	Landek, Steven	113*
782-6597	Barickman, Jason	303D	782-8505	Lightford, Kimberly	323*
782-0052	Bertino-Tarrant, Jennifer	617D*	782-8181	Link, Terry	321*
782-2119	Biss, Daniel	M121*	782-8137	Luechtefeld, David	103B*
782-0180	Bivins, Tim	M103A*	782-0228	Manar, Andy	517*
782-6216	Brady, Bill	103A*	782-8191	Martinez, Iris	529*
782-7353	Bush, Melinda	M122*	782-8206	McCann, William (Sam)	105E*
782-5399	Clayborne, James	329*	782-5755	McCarter, Kyle	105B*
782-1607	Collins, Jacqueline	M114*	782-1977	McConnaughay, Karen	303A*
782-8192	Connelly, Michael	M103E*	782-8800	McGuire, Pat	118*
782-2728	Cullerton, John	327*	782-3650	Morrison, Julie	629A
782-9463	Cullerton, Thomas	M106*	782-1035	Mulroe, John	127*
782-5145	Cunningham, Bill	M115*	782-9415	Munoz, Antonio	323*
782-5652	Delgado, William	623*	782-4471	Murphy, Matt	108E*
782-8148	Dillard, Kirk	103C*	782-7746	Noland, Michael	307B*
782-8010	Duffy, Dan	105D*	782-0471	Oberweis, Jim	303F*
782-5509	Forby, Gary	537*	782-7730	Radogno, Christine	108*
782-2507	Frerichs, Michael	124*	782-5338	Raoul, Kwame	122*
782-5247	Haine, William	525*	782-3840	Rezin, Sue	105C*
782-8176	Harmon, Don	329*	782-6674	Righter, Dale	105A*
782-8066	Harris, III, Napoleon	M108*	558-1006	Rose, Chapin	103D*
782-9595	Hastings, Michael	307A*	782-5304	Sandoval, Martin	111*
782-0422	Holmes, Linda	129*	782-5500	Silverstein, Ira	503*
782-5966	Hunter, Mattie	619*	782-8022	Stadelman, Steve	509*
782-7419	Hutchinson, Toi	501*	782-8492	Steans, Heather	M120*
782-5957	Jacobs, Mike	123*	782-2479	Sullivan, John	527*
782-9573	Jones, III, Emil	605*	782-5413	Syverson, Dave	M103D*
782-8250	Koehler, David	M113*	782-3201	Trotter, Donne	627*
782-3875	Kotowski, Dan	M118*	782-6252	Van Pelt, Patricia	519*
782-1942	LaHood, Darin	M103F*			
*Capitol					